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Corporate Profile
NI

Our Company was established in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007. Our
Group's history dates back to 2001 when Hunan Yingde was established in the PRC. Our
Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
October 2009. Our Company wholly owns Yingde BVI which is incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands and is an investment holding company of our Group.

Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total revenue for the year ended

3| December 2015.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises our
gas production facilities are located on or in close proximity to and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers include liquid gas distributors and other
industrial companies who purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from

time to time.

We differentiate our on-site operation and merchant operation as well as the revenue
generated from the respective operations in accordance with the type of customers to
which we sell our gas products. In relation to the on-site operation, we generate revenue
by selling our gas products to those customers with whom we have entered into long-
term gas supply contracts. In relation to the merchant operation, we generally generate
revenue by selling our gas products (which are produced from the remaining available
capacity of our on-site production facilities as well as our dedicated merchant production
facilities) to local distributors on the spot market. We also enter into gas supply contracts
with a selected number of merchant customers who have a stable and regular demand
for our gas products. Pursuant to such contracts, we supply gas products on a regular
basis during the term of the relevant gas supply contracts. The on-site production facilities
referred to in this report relate to those which we construct after having entered into
long-term gas supply contracts with industrial companies. The merchant production
facilities referred to in this report relate to those which we generally operate without

entering into long-term gas supply contracts with customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

Oh behalf of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (our “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, referred to as our “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2015. | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders

for your continuous support and concem.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2015, the focuses of global economy were scattered, and commodity prices remained
low. China's economy in 2015 remained in the downturn due to the macro economy
adjustment in 2013 and 2014, and tended to reach the bottom. On the second half of
2015, with the Chinese government's effort to fight against haze, the situation became
more complicated, with huge pressure on decreasing stock in real estate industry, severe
over capacity in steel and iron as well as commodity industries, resulting in lack of drive for

the growth of demand for industrial gases.

Industrial gas is the primary material in modern industry, and it has an important position
and plays an important role in the national economy. It is an indispensable production
element for industries such as petro chemicals, coal chemical, metallurgy, electronics,
medical, and food. With the global economy in sluggish, China's economy in the downturn,
as well as the over capacity of commodities, the demand for industrial gases was greatly

affected.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group has been the largest independent on-site gas supplier in China since 2009.
According to SAI report, our Group remained as the largest independent industrial gas
supplier in the PRC in terms of total revenue in 2015. Our Group, with its extensive
market experience and excellent professional teams, has evolved into a reliable gas
provider and has been granted with premium projects. As at the end of 2015, our Group
had 68 production facilities in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 1,942,300
Nm?/hr.
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Chairman’s Statement (continueq)
FEHRE@

Although the macroeconomic environment is filled with uncertainties, as a leader of the
industrial gas industry in China, our Group maintained stable development in 2015, thanks
to the professional management which has laid a solid foundation for our sustainable
development. Apart from iron and steel makers, in recent years, we further diversified
our customer base into enterprises in industries including chemical and nonferrous metal.
As at the end of 2015, our Group has 65 on-site gas supply facilities in operation with a
total installed oxygen capacity of 1,939,300 Nm?/hr. For the merchant market, the market
demand for nitrogen and argon remained relatively stable while the volume of oxygen

sold decreased due to decline in demand from the metal processing industry.
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Chairman’s Statement ccontinued)

FEHRET®

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, our Group will put more facilities into operation to further expand our
business coverage in 2016. In addition, our Group will continue to identify more quality
customers and maintain its leading position in the industry by providing the best gas

service to our customers.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners and customers
for their support and trust over the years. Meanwhile, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff for their efforts in the past year. We commit to capitalize our success

and we will strive to maximize the return to our shareholders.

Zhongguo Sun
Chairman and chief executive officer
22 March 2016
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

TTHRBBRENREEEBARR DM

On behalf of our Company's management team, | am pleased to report our Group's 2015

results to our shareholders as follows:

INDUSTRY REVIEW

As the profound impact of the global financial crisis continued, the world economy was
still in deep adjustment. Facing the situation of economy downturn, the manufacturing
industry was in depression, which brought pressures to the downstream industry chain.
The steel industry and the chemical industry, which were closely related to the industrial
gas industry, were facing enormous operational pressure, and the coal chemical industry
was clouded with a thick wait-and-see atmosphere. Affected by this, the challenge of the
project operation of industrial gases has increased. According to the 2015 SAI report,
it is estimated that the CAGR of China industrial gas market from 2015 to 2020 would
amount to 6.9%, and China’s gross industrial gas would reach US$12.8 billion by 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy remained slack in 2015, while the markets of various domestic
industries were volatile. Although the macroeconomic environment is filled with
uncertainties, as the leader of the industrial gas industry in China, our Group maintained
stable development in 2015, thanks to the professional management which has laid a solid
foundation for our sustainable development. Apart from iron and steel makers, in recent
years, we further diversified our customer base into enterprises in industries including

chemical and nonferrous metal.

As at 31 December 2015, our Group had a total of 68 facilities in operation and 10 facilities
under development. The total installed capacity amounted to 1,942,300 Nm?/hr in terms
of installed oxygen capacity, representing an increase of 10.8% as compared with last year.
During the year, our Group sold 24,050 million Nm? of industrial gases, representing a
growth of 4.1% as compared with last year. The total sales volume of oxygen products,
nitrogen products and argon products were 10,759 million Nm?, 9,942 million Nm? and 222
million Nm?, respectively. It is expected that the total installed capacity will exceed 2,100,000

Nm?®/hr in 2017 when construction of all facilities under development is completed.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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CEOQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRARBREREEENWNR D M

REVIEW OF ON-SITE GAS SUPPLY OPERATION

Our Group is principally engaged in on-site gas supply. After years of continuing
development and with our professional management, we currently maintain a stable and
quality customer base and an established professional reputation in the industrial gas
industry. To ensure reliable and stable gas supply to our customers, we provide on-site
services including design, construction, operation and maintenance of production facilities

at our customers’ premises or in close proximity.

According to the SAl Report of 2015, our Group was the largest independent on-site
industrial gas supplier in the PRC with a market share of 38.9% in 2015. Our major gas
products include oxygen, nitrogen and argon. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the revenue of our Group's on-site gas supply business amounted to RMB6,886 million,
representing an increase of 2.7% as compared with last year. On-site gas supply accounted
for approximately 87.0% of the revenue of our Group, mainly contributed by customers
from steel, chemical and non-ferrous metals industries. To secure stable stream of income,
our Group has been stringent in customer selection, and will normally enter into long
term take-or-pay on-site gas supply contracts with customers with a term from 10 to 30

years, which include terms of minimum gas supply commitment.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THREIHEREEENRR D e

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our Group has entered into one new long-term

on-site gas supply contract.

REVIEW OF MERCHANT GAS OPERATION

As the manufacturing sector remained in the doldrums with shrinking demand from
downstream sectors, the revenue of our Group's merchant gas operation for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB825 million, representing a decrease of
9.8% as compared with last year. The percentage of merchant sales accounting for the
revenue of our Group also decreased to 10.4%. Due to the downturn of the metal
processing industry in the PRC, our sales volume of oxygen decreased by 19.7% and unit
price of oxygen decreased by 4.1% as compared with last year. Affected by the sluggish
photovoltaic market in the PRC, the unit price of argon decreased by 5.9% as compared

with last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging on our comprehensive market strategy, effective control over cost and
expenditure, development of business, and devotion from our management and staff,
our Group recorded an increase in both our production and sales in 2015, resulting in a

steady growth in 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our revenue increased by RMB203 million to
RMB7,919 million from RMB7,716 million in 2014. The increase in revenue is mainly
attributable to the commencement of operation of 4 on-site facilities during the year

and the full ramp-up of facilities that commenced operation in 2014.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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CED’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THRIBEREEETRR D M@

REVENUE KA
Our revenue consists of proceeds from the sale of industrial gas products and provision of BREOMABERE TEREE R NIERRS
service. Our revenue is recognised when our gas products are delivered to and accepted BIFTEFIE c HAHBWARKRMO R EE DN
by a customer, to whom our Company has transferred the related risks and ownership or BERRFHRERAEYERGEALNRDE
other services are rendered. The revenue figures represent the aggregation of the invoiced ZEBEMRR N EERESEAIIZHMAER
value of goods sold or services provided, net of value-added tax. Our revenue increased EBER WARTZ BT REERENEES
by 2.6% from RMB7,716 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB7,919 MR REREEZEE - ARFNBABEE
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. WI4FNAIBILEEENARET7I6EET
BM26%EBE0I5F A3 REFEHA
RETII9BRET -
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(RMB million) (AREEHET)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

(Year ended 31 December)
BZE12A3BLEFE)

The table below sets out revenue generated from sales of industrial gases to our on-site, TRIEINFRENEHETERETHESH
merchant customers and other services rendered for the years indicated: R TERP U NMREEMABERETEHUR
N

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IBLFE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R %) ARETT (%)

Revenue LON
Sales of industrial gases to HETXRBTREHATP

on-site customer 6,886,264 87.0 6,703,504 86.9
Sales of industrial gases to HETXRBTZEEP

merchant customer 824,593 10.4 914,237 1.8
Revenue from other related services  FE 4 E o 1B R AR 7% 208,004 26 98,420 1.3
Total st 7,918,861 100.0 7,716,161 100.0

BERESBEEBEERAA
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THREIHEREEENRR D e

The table below sets out the weighted average unit price of gases sold to our merchant

customers for the years indicated:

TREIINATENARFANTEEFHER
IEF BRI ER -

Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE
2015
Unit price (RMB/Nm?®)
BRERARE/BELHK)

2014

Oxygen ax 0.71 0.74
Nitrogen AR 0.63 0.65
Argon R 1.28 1.36
Weighted Average Unit Price T B ER 0.79 08l

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales mainly comprises utility expenses, depreciation expenses for property,
plant and equipment related to production, staff costs for our production team and other
expenses. Utility expenses, mainly consisting of electricity expenses and steam expenses,
represented 80.2% and 80.9% of our total cost of sales for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, respectively. Depreciation and amortisation expenses relate primarily
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets we own and are calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of these assets. Staff costs mainly include
salaries, bonuses, benefits and contributions that we pay to our employees or the benefit
we make to our employees in our production team. Other expenses primarily consist of

other consumables as well as repair and maintenance.

Cost of sales increased by 2.5% from RMBS5,237 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB5,369 million for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was mainly
driven by the increase in the revenue. Cost of sales as a percentage of revenue slightly
decreased from 67.9% for the year ended 3| December 2014 to 67.8% for the year
ended 3| December 2015.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THREIREREEENRR D e

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by 2.9% from RMB2,479 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB2,550 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Our gross
profit margin increased from 32.1% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 32.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a slight increase compared with last

year.

OTHER INCOME

Other income mainly includes subsidies and grants from local government authorities and
income from certain one-off transactions. In 2015, our Group repurchased USD26 million
senior notes and the relevant gain of RMB20 million on repurchase was recognised in

other income.

SELLING EXPENSES

Our selling expenses primarily consist of freight charges for distribution and logistics
expenses and staff costs in connection with hiring and maintaining our sales team across
different regions in the PRC. Selling expenses decreased by 15.2% from RMB244 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB207 million for the year ended 31

December 2015, mainly due to the decrease in our sales volume of merchant gases.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs in connection with hiring and
retaining our management and administrative staff at our headquarters and production
plant level, travel and entertainment expenses, external consulting fees and impairment
losses of trade receivables and non-current assets. Administrative expenses increased by
RMB35 million from RMB466 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB50
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, which is mainly due to an allowance made
by our Group for doubtful debts of trade receivables of RMB144 million on the on-site

customers and merchant customers.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, our profit from operations increased by 4.4% from RMBI,796
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMBI,875 million for the year ended
31 December 2015, while our operating profit margin increased from 23.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to 23.7% for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THREIHEREEENRR D e

FINANCE INCOME
Our finance income mainly consists of interest income from bank deposits, finance income
on receivables under finance lease and the gain on remeasurement of derivative financial

instruments.

Finance income increased by 10.7% from RMB28 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB3 | million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCE COSTS
Our finance costs primarily consist of interest payments for our borrowings granted
by banks and other financial institutions as well as finance charges on obligations under

finance lease and exchange loss.

Finance costs increased by 86.2% from RMB520 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB968 million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due to the
depreciation of Renminbi in 2015 resulting in foreign exchange loss of RMB324 million
incurred in connection with our outstanding foreign currency debts (as at 3|1 December
2015, the Group had a total of 897 million HKD debts and 828 million USD debts), and

increase in bank borrowings and issuance of senior notes.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses increased by 9.7% from RMB381 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB418 million for the year ended 31 December 2015, primarily due
to the increase in profit before taxation from PRC operating subsidiaries and expenses
incurred by subsidiaries not yet profitable that are not deductable for enterprise income

tax in China.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to the equity shareholders of our Company
decreased by 40.7% from RMB904 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB536 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests decreased from RMB8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to a loss of RMB3 million for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015

ik T ON

BN BERATERERITERNFENK
A BERREREETOBERANREIT
AeRMI AN -

FHEBABREZ204FNRA3IHEFENA
RERBBETIEMIOI¥EEZ2I5FI12A
JIBLEFEMARKEIIEEL

R AR
BMNMBAATEBRRITREAMHTBHEE
EROMERY  BEHRERENREERAN
MEREX -

SR ABEZ214F 2A3HEFENA
RES0BETLEME2%EEHE20I15F12A
BJIHLEEEMARBEIGEEL TERA
WISFAREEE  SBEARMKENEES
(HZ2015F 12831 B AEEBTER L
87 BB ELEBH8EET)HEN
UBEETAREELBAURBITEREM
RETEEZBA -

FrEHER

SR ERMBZE04FE N A3 BILEEEN
ARSI HETLIEMITHZEEE205F 12
A BILEEMARB4I8EE L T 22AH
RREIAIE & F 1 7RO BR B A M B 3G 0 R R E
EFIBNFRRANT EEEZENBENNSEN
SRATE

ARAREFE ARG

BEREXFT - AABMESRA ARGNE
MEZE04E 1283 BILEEN ARE04
BEILRL407%EZHE2015F 124318 1E
FEMARBSICTET °

FERRREERBIEE
FERBRFEEGHEHEZE2014F 128318
FFENARESBEELTREBZE 2015512
A3 BLEEENBEARKIBET



CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

ITHABHREREEBHRRD M

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

I U B o e At P R R

As at 31 December

RI12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables FEUBR R 1,919,665 1,692,498
Bills receivable eSS 685,139 415932
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (376,809) (233,232)
Deposits and other receivables e REMERTIR 454,869 969,407

2,682,864 2,844,605

Our trade and other receivables decreased from RMB2,845 million as at 31 December
2014 to RMB2,683 million as at 31 December 2015. Our Group has made a sufficient

amount of allowance for doubtful debts in this financial year.

Turover of trade receivables increased from 62 days for the year ended 31 December

2014 to 82 days for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The following table sets out the turmover of our trade receivables for the years indicated:

BT FEUCRR R R EL A FE ORI B 2014 5 12 A
3IBMARB28465BETTHE20I5F12H3I
ANARK LB BET - ASEEAFED
RTRENREER -

ENEE X A EHHEZ2014F 12831 BILF
EHOREEZEE0ISENAIBILFERN
82K °

TREINNRFENRYRR N BEXEY -

Year ended 3| December

BZNANBLEE

2015 2014
Turnover of trade receivables (days)* FENBR R B8 (R8> 82 62
Note: it
* Calculated on the average of the beginning and ending trade receivables balances for the * HARFEEME - HRFEFNEFLRAE

year, divided by revenue for the year, and multiplied by 360 days for a year in respect of the

years indicated.
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BORROWINGS B
As at 3| December
RI12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
Short-term borrowings BT 709,676 205,000
Current portion of long-term borrowings REE T ENERED 1n 893,662 1,516,138
1,603,338 1,721,138
Non-current portion of long-term borrowings REERHREEHG 8,060,162 7,379,592
9,663,500 9,100,730
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBEEREFER
We have historically met our working capital and other capital requirements principally HPBEFZUARERENRA  SBRMERN

from equity provided by our shareholders, cash generated from operations, cash at
bank and in hand, short-term and long-term borrowings from banks and other financial

institutions and debt securities.

As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of our Group were approximately RMB19,574
million, representing an increase of RMB323 million from 31 December 2014. The cash
at bank and in hand was RMB678 million, representing an increase of RMB72 million from
31 December 2014. The current ratio of our Group was 88.7%. The gearing ratio of our

Group that is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets was 64.9%.

One subsidiary of our Group issued corporate bonds of aggregate amount of RMB980
million in October 2015 at an interest rate of 548% per annum, which will be due in
2020. Details of the corporate bonds are set out in note 24(h) to the consolidated

financial statements.

One subsidiary of our Group issued senior notes of an aggregate amount of US$250
million in August 2014 (“Senior Notes II") at an interest rate of 7.25% per annum,
which will be due in 2020. Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24(f) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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One subsidiary of our Group issued senior notes of an aggregate amount of USD425
million in April 2013 (“Senior Notes I'") at an interest rate of 8.125% per annum, which will
be due in 2018. Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24(f) to the consolidated

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying value of assets pledged to secure for bank
borrowings and other loans was RMB2,580 million (31 December 2014: RMB2,244

million).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

On 24 November 2013, our Company and China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (“CDB International”) entered into an investment agreement
whereby our Company agreed to issue and CDB International agreed to subscribe for
(i) the principal amount of US$25 million 8% coupon convertible bonds due 2015; and
(if) at nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable to purchase Shares (the "CDB

International Warrants").

The convertible bonds are convertible into Shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$8.80 per Share. If all the convertible bonds are converted at the initial conversion
price, a total of 22,024,148 new Shares will be issued. The initial price at which a share
will be issued upon exercise of a warrant will be HK$10.23. The total price at which
CDB International is entitled to acquire the warrant shares from our Company shall be
not more than US$25 million. The net proceeds from the issue of our convertible bonds
received by our Company is approximately US$25 million and were used as general
working capital of our Company. Upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching
to the warrants, net proceeds of approximately US$25 million will be raised by our

Company, which will be used as general working capital of the Company.

There was no conversion of the convertible bonds or exercise of the warrants during
the year of 2015. As at 31 December 2015, the convertible bonds were mature and

redeemed by our Company.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for the construction of new
production facilities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments.
The annual total capital expenditure for 2015 was RMBI,123 million (2014: RMB2,013
million), principally comprised expenditures for the construction of new production
facilities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments, which were

financed by a combination of our internal cash flows and bank borrowings.

INTERESTS

We have entered into an interest rate swap contract to achieve a targeted mix of fixed
and floating rate debts. In this interest rate swap contract, we principally receive interests
at floating rates based on London Interbank Offered Rate and pay interests at fixed rate.
The interest rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge to hedge against changes in the

interest rates of our debt portfolio.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As at 31 December 2015, our Group had no investments in hedging of any speculative
derivatives. In view of the potential Renminbi exchange rate fluctuations, our Group
will consider arranging for proper financial instruments at appropriate time to avoid the

corresponding risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities of our Group are set out in notes 32(c) and 32(d) to

the consolidated financial statements.
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STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS
Our Company aims to consolidate and further strengthen our position as the leading

domestic independent on-site industrial gas supplier in the PRC.
In order to achieve this, we intend to pursue the following strategies:

. capitalize on the outsourcing trend and consolidate and further strengthen our

leading position in the on-site industrial gas outsourcing market in China;

. "Go Deep” and "Go Wide" to develop our business and expand our business
network;

. further enhance and expand our Company's target markets through industry
diversification;

. enhance our competitive strength in providing customized, unique and efficient

solutions to our customers through continuous innovation and research and

development; and

. continue to attract and retain highly skilled professionals.

EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Human resources and information technology have been essential to our Group's
success. Our staff is crucial assets of our Company. As such, we review our remuneration
policy and welfare from time to time to ensure it remains competitive. Our Company
has a balanced appraisal system to evaluate the staff's performance. For the long-term
development of all concered, we provide relevant training to our staff, such as providing
financial supports to our staff for their further education and carrying out relevant
trainings for our management. Our Group has operated a training and research centre
in Hangzhou, where our staff could acquire more knowledge on industry safety and

technology.

As at 31 December 2015, our Group had 2,707 (31 December 2014: 3,641) employees.
The decrease in headcount was mainly a result of cancelation of certain projects under
construction, improvement of efficiency of plant management and streamlining our

Company's structure in 2015.
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We believe that our Company's strong growth and maturity is credited to the expertise
of our high-calibre staff and their full support to our Company’s development strategy.
Our Company values every staff member, and therefore put forward a people-oriented
governance philosophy, endeavouring to provide our staff with an excellent working
environment and a sound promotion system, and to offer newly promoted staff
comprehensive on-the-job training, with a view to fostering a sense of belonging among
staff members and propping up their passion at work so that they may provide clients

with higher quality services.

EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

Our senior management and senior technicians have extensive experience in the
operation of industrial gas enterprises, as well as industry knowledge and know-how,
enabling them to lead our Group's businesses to greater success. In addition to retaining
management personnel, we also continue recruiting high-calibre technicians and improving
our operation systems and production technologies, in order to provide customers with

the best gas supply management solutions and other professional services.

DIVIDENDS
The directors of our Company have proposed a final dividend of RMBO.14 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMBO.20 per share).

The final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of our Company. If the proposal for dividend is approved at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, it is expected that the final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2015 will be paid on or before 31 August 2016 to the shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Stakeholders

Our Group's investor relations team is devoted to enabling the most effective
communication between our Company with shareholders, the financial community and
other stakeholders. Our Company adheres to the best practices of high transparency and
consistency in information disclosure no matter the market is favourable to the industrial
gas sector or otherwise. Our investor relations team has earned the recognition from
shareholders, investors and analysts on our Group's integrity in continuing to disclose
our Company's strategies and performance at the earliest date in 2015. Our Company's
investor relations team frequently reports to management and relevant departments on
stakeholders' comments and opinions so that we could keep improving our efficiency and
performance, with the ultimate goal of generating higher returns for our shareholders.
Communication between the stakeholders and our Company is a two-way process. Our

Company had made the following efforts in 2015:

Providing updates to stakeholders through the following channels:

- announcements and notices published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, our Company's website, and/or dispatched to our shareholders pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

- our Company's financial reports;

- our annual and extraordinary general meetings, attended by top management

representatives and Directors; and

- investors conferences and meetings.
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Encouraging feedback from stakeholders through the following channels:

- face-to-face dialogue at our annual and extraordinary general meetings;

- communication with stakeholders via email or telephone. Our Company also

replied email and telephone enquiries from stakeholders directly. If it was a matter
of general interest to stakeholders, we would seek to address it in subsequent

corporate communication to all stakeholders; and

- site visits. Our Company has organized a few site visits for the stakeholders to

inspect our production facilities across China in 2015.

Our Company collected and reported to the management team regularly about

stakeholders' comments and suggestions on our operations.

We are grateful to all stakeholders who offered us support and provided us with feedback
during 2015. If any stakeholder has questions or comments on our Company's work,

please contact us at ir@yingdegas.com.

PROSPECTS

Despite that the industrial gas market was affected by weakening global economy and the
slowdown of China's economic growth in 2015, and, in particular, that there had been
unstable performance in the merchant market, our Group will continue to consolidate
our business and will endeavour to secure suitable and quality customers in the market in

order to maintain our leading position in the industry.

Pursuing the above goals, our Group will strive for outstanding performance in 2016 and

reciprocate our shareholders with admirable retum.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Zhongguo Sun, aged 52, was initially appointed as the chairman, chief executive officer
of our Company and an executive Director on |2 November 2007 and was subsequently
re-elected as a Director on 19 May 2010 and 21 June 2013. Mr. Sun was one of the
founders of our Group and has been a director and the general manager of our Group
since 2001. Mr. Sun is responsible for the overall management and strategy of our
Group. Mr. Sun has more than ten years experience in the industrial gas industry. Prior to
establishing our Group, Mr. Sun was the business manager of applied gas solution at BOC
Group Plc, Mr. Sun received a Master's degree in Science in Mechanical Engineering from

the University of Pittsburgh in 1989.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Xiangti, aged 57, was initially appointed as an executive Director on |2
November 2007 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on |5 June 2012 and
29 April 2015. Mr. Zhao was one of the founders of our Group and has participated in
our management, business development and expansion since October 2001. Mr. Zhao is
responsible for domestic finance planning and support in the PRC within our Group. Mr.
Zhao has years of experience in the industrial gas industry. Mr. Zhao received a Bachelor's

degree in Engineering from Hebei Science and Technology University in 1982.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, aged 64, was appointed as an executive Director on 20 May
2010 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 26 May 2011 and 9 May 2014,
He is also the chief operating officer of our Company. Mr. Strutt was one of the founders
of our Group and has been the deputy general manager responsible for the overall
operational aspects of our Group since establishment. Mr. Strutt has more than 20 years
experience in the industrial gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group, he held various
positions at BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Strutt received a Bachelor’ s degree in Science with
Honors in Materials Science from the University of Sussex in 1975 and a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the University of Leeds in 2001. Mr. Strutt is a member of
the Institute of Materials, Minerals and Mining, and is a registered member of the United

Kingdom Engineering Council — Chartered Engineer.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Fuya, aged 49, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 26
May 2011 and 9 May 2014. Mr. Zheng was a director of Cogo Group, Inc, a company
listed on the NASDAQ and has since | January 2008 served as the chief financial officer
of the same company. Mr. Zheng was previously a vice president of travel service at
elong, Inc, one of the leading online travel service companies in China and listed on the
NASDAQ, where Mr. Zheng was responsible for the overall operation of eLong Inc.'s
travel services. Mr. Zheng has more than ten years experience in the service industry. Mr.
Zheng received a Bachelor's degree of Business Administration majoring in accounting

from City University of New York in 1994.

Dr. Wang Ching, aged 61, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 4 December 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 15
June 2012 and 29 April 2015. Dr. Wang has more than 20 years of working experience
in global financial industry specialising in asset management, direct investment, corporate
finance, equity and fixed income trading/sales with particular focus in the U.S. and
the Greater China region. Dr. Wang is currently the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation registered with
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, and the executive director of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, an investment fund company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 770). He also serves as an independent
non-executive director of Minth Group Limited (stock code: 425), a leading supplier of
exterior automobile body parts in China as well as China Singyes Solar Technologies
Holdings Limited (stock code: 750), a fast growing professional thin-film BIPV building
engineering company, in which he advises senior management on business strategies and
financial development in the fast changing China market. Dr. Wang had served as the
CEO of the Investment & Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun Financial Holding Co.,,
Ltd. in Taiwan, Chairman of FENB Securities, Inc. in U.S., Managing Director of SinoPac
Securities (Asia) Hong Kong, Managing Director of JS Cresvale International Securities,
Director of Investment Banking of Standard Chartered Bank in Hong Kong, and Associate
Director of Bear Stearns & Co., Inc. in New York. Dr. Wang received his Ph.D. in Finance

from Columbia University in New York.
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Mr. He Yuanping, aged 49, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 December 2013 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on
9 May 2014. He has years of experience in senior operation and management, with
rich theoretical knowledge and practical experience in the investment and financing,
business management, industrial operations, finance and other fields. From September
2005 to present, Mr. He has taken senior positions in many companies, including the
director, executive vice president, chief financial officer (“CFO") and board secretary
of Beijing Originwater Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300070), the director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co.,,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600168), and the
director and supervisor for more than 30 affiliated companies of Beijing Originwater
Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. He currently is a member of the issuance examination
committee of the Sixth China Securities Regulatory Commission GEM, Haidian District,
Beijing Political Consultative conference committee, vice president of Western Retumed
Scholars Association ANZ branch, deputy secretary general of Beijing Listed Companies
Association, and executive director of Beijing Private Technology Entrepreneurs
Association. He was awarded as New Fiscal Year China's Top Ten CFO by the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC, China's Annual Most Valuable CFO by the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, 2014 China International Financial Leader, Excellent
Board Secretary of China Listed Company, and the Second Session Excellent Young
Entrepreneurs of Haidian District, Beijing. Mr. He worked as a vice president and chief
investment officer of Beijing Allianz Investment Co. Ltd. from April 2004 to August 2005,
the general manager of Peking University Founder Group-Fangzhengdongan Rare Earth
Ltd. from June 2002 to August 2004, a vice president and investment director of Peking
University Founder Group Investment Company from July 2000 to June 2002, a staff
member and director of Social Development Division and International Science and
Technology Center of State Scientific and Technological Commission of the PRC (now
known as Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC) from December 1992 to April
1997, and a teacher of Beijing Institute of Technology from February 1992 to December
1992. Mr. He received a Bachelor's degree in engineering from Nanjing University of
Science and Technology in July 1987, a master's degree in engineering from University of
Science & Technology Beijing in March 1992 and a master's degree in financial mathematic

from Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand in June 2000.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhongguo Sun - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Director and Chairman”.

Mr. Zhao Xiangti - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed - “Executive

Directors”.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Directors”.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing, aged 37, joined our Group on | July 2008 and is CFO and joint
company secretary of our Group. Ms. Wong has over ten years of accounting experience
in the industrial sector. Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Wong was the group chief
financial officer of Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holdings Limited,
an investment holding company with subsidiaries engaging in media business in the
PRC. She was previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China Company
Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by Orange Sky Entertainment
(International) Holdings Limited and Avex Group Holdings Inc., a company listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from
the University of Hong Kong. She received her EMBA from China Europe International
Business School. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. Wong Sze Wing - please refer to her biography under the sub-section headed - “Senior

Management".

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, was appointed as the joint company secretary of our Company on
24 June 2013. Ms. Mok is a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited, she has over 20 years
of professional and in-house experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Mok is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She currently acts as the

company secretary or joint company secretary of various publicly listed companies.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Directors’ Report

EEEWME

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Our Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Room 3212-13, 32/F,
Tower Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and has its registered office at

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111, Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total revenue for the year ended

3| December 2015.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises our
gas production facilities are located on or in close proximity to and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers are liquid gas distributors who purchase

industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from time to time.

The analysis of our Group's revenue is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 66.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
The business review of our Company for the year and the future development of our
Company are set out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “CEQO's Report and

Management Discussion & Analysis” of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
An analysis of our Group's performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the sections of “CEO's report and Management Discussion &

Analysis” and “Financial Summary" of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING BY THE COMPANY
We are exposed to the cyclical nature of our major customers’ industries and
economic conditions in China

We produce, supply and sell our gas products in China to on-site customers operating
in a limited number of industries, primarily the steel, chemical and non-ferrous metals
industries. These industries are cyclical in nature and are largely affected by the economic

growth and industrialization of China.

We rely on a limited number of customers and gas products to derive the substantial
portion of our revenue

We currently generate a substantial portion of our revenue from a limited number of
customers, all of which are located in China. In addition, we generate substantially all of
our revenue from a limited number of gas products, namely, oxygen, nitrogen and argon.
We anticipate that the revenue generated by these major customers and limited number
of gas products will continue to represent a substantial proportion of our revenue in
the near future. Any significant decline in the business or financial condition of our major
customers could adversely affect the demand for our products and our major customers'
ability to satisfy their obligations under the take-or-pay gas supply contracts they have

entered into with us.

We are exposed to risks that our on-site customers may default or prematurely
terminate under our gas supply contracts

We generally enter into long-term take-or-pay gas supply contracts with our major on-
site customers. However, if any of our major on-site customers terminates its gas supply
contract prior to the expiration of the contractual term, defaults on or delays payments
under such contracts, fails to take delivery of our gas products in accordance with our
long-term gas supply contracts or fails to comply with the price adjustment provisions
in the gas supply contracts with respect to utility costs, our revenue and profitability will
be adversely affected and our expenditures related to the construction, start-up and
operation of our production facilities may not be fully or partially recovered during that
period of operations. In the event that our customers delay or default on payments, we

may be required to commence legal proceedings to enforce the contract terms.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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The majority of our contracts with merchant customers are short-term and do not
have fixed prices and as a result, the merchant market demand for, and the prices of,
our gas products may fluctuate

Due to the commodity nature of our gas products, we have limited bargaining power
in relation to pricing. Any decrease in the demand and prices for our gas products will
generally result in a decrease in the turnover and margins of our merchant business, which

may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Fluctuations in the value of the Renminbi may materially and adversely effect our
results of operations and financial condition

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through People's Bank of China (the "PBOC") or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the PBOC that

would be subject to a managed float against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside the PRC, are
subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of our Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with

government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of our Group are transacted in Renminbi. Our
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial assets and financial liabilities that
are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the
Renminbi against foreign currencies can affect the Group's results. Our Group did not

hedge its foreign currency exposure.

DIVIDENDS

Our Directors have proposed a final dividend of RMBO.14 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2015 to be paid on or before 31 August 2016, resulting in the full year
dividend of RMBO0.20 per Share. (2014: RMB0.20 per Share).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group is

set out on pages 196 to 197.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and our Company during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 30(a) to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Our Company's total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2015 amounted to

RMBI,061 million (2014: RMBI,629 million).

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital of our Company during the year ended 31 December

2015 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in our Group's property, plant and equipment are set out in note || to the

consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITALISATION OF INTERESTS

Details of borrowings of our Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of our Group's capitalised interests expenses
and other borrowing costs during the year are set out in note 6(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Details of the retirement benefit plans of our Group are set out in note 6(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year under review, neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company's listed securities.

REPURCHASE OF SENIOR NOTES

In 2015, Yingde Gases Investment Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company)
repurchased a total of principal amount of USD4 million (approximately RMB25 million)
and USD22 million (approximately RMBI37 million) of the senior notes issued by it in
April 2013 and August 2014, respectively, at an aggregate consideration of USD23 million
(approximately RMB 143 million). The gain of RMB20 million on the above-mentioned

senior notes purchase was recognized in other income of our Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the shareholders
on 12 September 2009 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on |2 September 2009.
Unless it is terminated by the Board or our shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date on which it became unconditional. After
the period, no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to exercise any subsisting options
granted prior to the expiry of this ten year period or otherwise as handled in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, the

remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was approximately 3 years and 5 months.

The amount payable by a participant upon acceptance of a grant of option is RMB1.00.
The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer any employee, management member or
Director of our Company, or any of our subsidiaries and third party service providers
the options to subscribe for shares on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivize them to remain with us and to give effect to our customer-
focused corporate culture, and to motivate them to strive for our future development
and expansion, by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in our

Company.
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The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 0% of the issued Shares as at the

date of approval of the Share Options Scheme (ie. a total of 180,923,250 Shares).

No option shall be granted to any one person such that the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person
in any 12 month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our issued share

capital from time to time, unless the approval of our shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an option upon exercise
shall be determined by the Board and notified to a proposed beneficiary at the time of
offer of the option and shall be not less than the higher of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of

grant; and
() the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period(s) for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. However, at the time of grant of the options, our

Company may specify any such minimum period(s).

Under the Share Option Scheme, a total of 3,832,500 share options were granted to
the Directors and no share options were exercised by the Directors as at 3| December
2015. If all the granted share options are exercised at the exercise prices, the Company
will receive HK$16,844,625. As at 31 December 2015, as no Shares were issued under
the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Share available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme remained to be 180,923,250, representing approximately 9.57% of the

issued share capital of the Company.
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The following table sets out the movements of the Company's share options during the TREIARABREFANZHER -

year:
Closing
price of
the Shares
immedately Outstanding Outstanding
before the asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
dateof  Exercise | January during during during during 31 December
Name of grantees Date of grant  Exercise period grant price 2015 the year the year the year the year 2015
RERY H015% 0155
REARS IAIA 12831
ARARR RARA i kaE  RE  HATE  FACRE FASAE  FASAN  EAEE  HAOR
Directors
g%
Mr. Zhongguo Sun 16/1072014 16/1072014 - 656 6.6 700,000 - - - - 700,000
Zhongauo S 15/102019
/1112015 W/117015- 338 33 - 1,490,000 - - - 1,490,000
19/1112020
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt 16/1072014 16/1012014 - 656 6,62 350000 - - - - 350000
Trevor Raymond StruttEF 151072019
/1112015 W117015- 338 33 - 745000 - - - 745,000
1971172020
Mr. Zhao Xiangfi 16/1072014 16/1072014 - 656 662 175,000 - - - - 175000
BBRAE 15/1072019
2001112015 W117015- 338 33 - 372,500 - - - 372500
19/1112020
Total 1,225,000 2607,500 - - - 3832500
ai
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SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME

On 8 July 2013, our Company adopted a share allotment scheme (“Share Allotment
Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Allotment Scheme s to recognise the contributions
of certain employees and to give incentives for them to work with commitment towards
enhancing the value of our Company and to attract high caliber personnel for further

development of our Group.

The Board has the power to administer the Share Allotment Scheme in accordance
with the rules of the Share Allotment Scheme. Our Company shall bear the costs of
establishing and administering the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee will borrow the
loans, hold the Shares and the income derived therefrom, and perform its duties of trustee
in accordance with the terms of the trust deed and such other applicable agreements as
agreed between our Company and the trustee from time to time either in its own name
or in the name of a nominee or an investment/asset holding vehicle established solely
for the purposes of the Share Allotment Scheme. The allotted shares held by the trustee
shall be fully vested on the participating employee on the tenth anniversary date of the
reference date provided that the participating employee remains at all times after the

reference date an employee.

The participating employees of the Share Allotment Scheme are mid-and-senior-level
management team of our Company selected by the Board at its sole discretion on the
basis of the employee’s contribution to the development and growth of our Group and

such other matters that the Board considers relevant.

The maximum number of the Shares which may be allotted to a participating employee
under the Share Allotment Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of our

Company as at the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment Scheme.

In respect of each participating employee, the Board shall cause a loan to be lent to the
trustee, being the sum of (i) the closing price of the allotted shares in respect of the
participating employee as at the reference date and (i) the related purchase expenses
incurred by the trustee from our Company's resources as soon as practicable. Within 15
business days after borrowing the loan from our Company, the trustee shall apply the

same towards the acquisition of the allotted shares at the prevailing market price.
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Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board under the Share
Allotment Scheme, the Share Allotment Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of |13 years commencing on the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment
Scheme (provided that no further Shares will be allotted to any employee after the
third anniversary of the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment Scheme) but the
provisions of the Share Allotment Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and in all
other respects. As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Allotment

Scheme was approximately 10 years and 3 months.

The maximum number of new Shares to be issued by the Company and allotted to the
trustee under the Share Allotment Scheme will be 180,683,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the adoption of the Share
Allotment Scheme. As at 31 December 2015, a total of 97,600,000 Shares had been
issued and allotted under the Share Allotment Scheme. As at the date of this report,
83,083,000 Shares were available for allotment under the Share Allotment Scheme,
representing approximately 4.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2015.

According to the Share Allotment Scheme, for subscription of the new Shares issued by
our Company, the Board has the discretion to decide the issue price up to 10% discount

to the 30-day average closing price of the Shares prior to the reference date.

2013 Allotment

On 15 October 2013, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share
Allotment Scheme, the Company allotted 22,600,000 Shares to the trustee holding on
behalf of the participating employees at an issue price of HK$7.03 per Share (the 2013
Allotment”). The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares
was HK$158,878,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant
to the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

2015 April Allotment

In order to allot Shares at a lower price to the existing participating employees to
appreciate their long services to our Company as well as to offer an opportunity for some
of our Company's new employees to participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, our
Company further issued and allotted 36,000,000 new Shares at the issue price of HK$5.59
per allotted Share to the trustee holding on behalf of the participating employees on 28
April 2015 (2015 April Allotment”) pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme to replace
the 2013 Allotment.
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The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares was
HK$201,240,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant
the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

2015 December Allotment

In order to allot Shares at a lower price to the existing participating employees to
appreciate their long services to our Company as well as to offer an opportunity for some
of our Company's new employees to participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, our
Company further issued and allotted 39,000,000 new Shares at the issue price of HK$3.32
per allotted Share to the trustee holding on behalf of the participating employees on 7
December 2015 (2015 December Allotment™) pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme
to replace the 2015 April Allotment.

The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares was
HK$129,480,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant to
the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

The allotted Shares held by the trustee shall be fully vested on the participating employee
on |6 September 2023, being the tenth anniversary date of the reference date of
2013 Allotment, provided that the participating employee remains at all times after the

reference date till vesting date an employee of our Company.
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Changes in the number of allotted Shares during the year under review are set out below:

TSI BB MRS R D 81 B HOB 1L

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
BE0I5F BZE0145
A3 BLEFE  NA3NALFE
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FBRE 22,400,000 22,600,000
Granted during the year AERRE 75,000,000 —
Forfeited during the year (notes |, 2) AFEIE(HEL2) (58,300,000) (200,000)
Vested during the year (note 3) AERE(HEE3) (100,000) —
Outstanding at the end of the year FERHE 39,000,000 22,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARATHE - —

Notes:

Since the completion of the 2015 April Allotment, three participating employees resigned
from the Group and all the 400,000 Shares allotted to them were forfeited.

22,400,000 Shares under 2013 Allotment and 36,000,000 Shares (including the 400,000
forfeited Shares mentioned in note | above) under 2015 April Allotment had been forfeited
for the purpose of the Share Allotment Scheme, and are held by the trustee. The trustee
will cause such Shares (exclude the 100,000 vested Shares) to be sold at a time to be

recommended by the committee established under the Share Allotment Scheme.

During the year of 2015, one participating employee passed away. According to
the Share Allotment Scheme rules, in the event of the death of a participating
employee, the trustee shall hold the allotted Shares upon Trust and to transfer the
same to the representative of such participating employee. As at 3|1 December
2015, the trustee is holding all the 100,000 vested Shares allotted to the deceased
participating employee upon trust, pending the claim of the representative of such

deceased participating employee.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the CDB International Warrants, the Share Option Scheme and Share Allotment
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer,
re-elected on 21 June 2013)

Mr. Zhao Xiangti (re-elected on 29 April 2015)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt (re-elected on 9 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Fuya (re-elected on 9 May 2014)

Dr. Wang Ching (re-elected on 29 April 2015)

Mr. He Yuanping (re-elected on 9 May 2014)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhongguo Sun and Mr.
He Yuanping shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 2| to 23.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with our Company or any member of our
Company which is not determinable by our Company within one year without the

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to our Group's business
to which our Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or

at any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of |8, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of our
Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right save as disclosed

in the report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR
COMPANY AND OUR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be entered in the register kept by our Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our Company and The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules contained in Appendix 10

were as follows:

EERERTHRAERAD AR EAEH
TENRG  HEROREFNERR
RE

R2NISFI12A318  ARRIEF REmTHR
ABRARAREAEEZE(EER(EHFKE
BEBIDEXVE) MG - BERG REHT
BERTBERARARB(ES RAERINE
EBFE B M - kR LW AR 8
THEZEETENGRRAREBBIM
HERRABIT :

Approximate

percentage
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares of shareholding
=1 BENE FERROHE FRENES L
(Note)
(&)
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Beneficiary of a trust 373,000,000 (long position)
Zhongguo Sundt EREEEA 373,000,000 ({F &)
Beneficial owner 2,190,000 (long position)
BEmBEAA 2,190,000 (#FA)
375,190,000 (long position) 19.85%
375,190,000 (4F2)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti Deemed interest, 233,129,585 (long position)
HIRRE A interest of controlled company
BEEA RS (EHIARES) 233,129,585 (4 &)
Beneficial owner 1,439,500 (long position)
BERBEAA 439,500 (478)
234,569,085 (long position) 1241%
234,569,085 (4 R)
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Founder of a discretionary trust 184,352,961 (long position)
Trevor Raymond Struttfe 4 2HEEFERIKIZLA 184,352,961 (4 &)
Beneficial owner 1,095,000 (long position)
BERBEAA 1095000 (478)
185,447,961 (long position) 9.81%
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Note: There were 1,890,573,500 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of our Company or their associates (including their spouses and children under
I8 years of age) had any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of our Company or our associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
OUR COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as follows:

BizE : #2015 124318 - B8471,890,573,500 %
BR17 o

B EXCRTHE AN R20I5F 128318 &
NAESE  BERTRAEIFEELHMEA(BE
BENRBRAM I8HEAFROBERAAT
FAEREB R - HERO REFTHEE
CHRREESFRBERAIEILEFELE
LA RBRRETAENG AN R RE B
R R EAR o

FERREREMATREAREBRG
MEZRAR

R20ISFEI12A3I8  EZMA THAL
(RRRAIMEERESTHAERIN BHER

TR 5 B 1 ) 336 1B R T 48
BEMAHAL ARG S EER O EESAR
W

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding

=L REME FrEE RGO B E BEBNEI L

(Note)

(F&E)

Baslow Technology Limited Beneficial owner 184,352,961 (long position) 9.75%
BRBEAA 184,352,961 (4 &)

Baslow Resources Limited Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 184,352,961 (long position) 9.75%
BEEARES (FHAFES) 184352961 (§78)

Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
BRBEAA 373,000,000 (4 &)

Li Hongmei Founder of a discretionary trust 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
FHIR PREEFNMIA 373,000,000 (48)

Rongton Investments Limited ~ Beneficial owner 233,129,585 (long position) 12.33%

BERAERAT HafAA
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Approximate
Number of percentage
Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=L BEME FEEROEE BREAEDE
(Note)
(P&E)
Equity Trustee Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 557,352,961 (long position) 29.48%
REA (WBEFEARN) 557352961 (4 &)
Rouser Investments Inc. Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
RIEFEEED (25 A R]#ER) 373,000,000 (4F2")
Aberdeen Asset Investment manager 202,115,000 (long position) 10.69%
Management Plc and RELE 202,115,000 (478)
its Associates (together
“The Aberdeen Group")
on behalf of Accounts
managed by the
Aberdeen Group
Aberdeen Global Beneficial Owner 146,611,000 (long position) 7.75%
ESHAA 146,611,000 (4F2")
KCS Trust Limited Trustee (Other than a bare trustee) 97,400,000 (long position) 5.15%
RN (WBEFEARIN) 97,400,000 (47 &)
Ultra Growth Management Beneficial Owner 97,400,000 (long position) 5.15%

Limited

BEaSHAA

Note: There were 1,890,573,500 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, our Company was not aware of
any person (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of the

SFO.

97,400,000 (11&)

BisE: M20ISFE12A318 B % 171,890,573,500

AR -
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AR BRI RSO A
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and there is
no restriction against such rights which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors have any ownership in other businesses which compete or are

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of our Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Our Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors and our
Company considers that Mr. He Yuanping, Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching to be

independent.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 3| December 2015, our Group had a total of 2,707 employees (2014:
3,641 employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB325 million (2014: RMB35
million). Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration will be determined by
the management with reference to individual performance and experience and industry

practice.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As our Group obtains our major raw material, air, at no cost, electricity, which comprises
over 60% of our total cost of sales, is therefore the largest item of our total purchases. As
our Group normally secures our electricity supply for our on-site gas operations through
contractual arrangements with our on-site customers, our current five largest suppliers
are all our on-site customers. Our Group generally obtains electricity from our on-site
customers at the market rate set by state-owned electricity grid companies. Electricity
is usually supplied to our on-site customers by local electricity companies which are
state-owned enterprises. As our Group generally collects our receivables from our on-
site customers and makes payment to on-site customers for our electricity usage at or
around the same time, their payments to us are generally netted off to take into account
our electricity expenses to our on-site customers. Our five largest suppliers together
accounted for approximately 38.1% (2014: 37.3%) of the total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.3% (2014: 11.5%) of our total purchases.

Our five largest customers together accounted for approximately 34.4% (2014: 32.3%)
of our total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2015. For the year ended 3|
December 2015, our largest customer accounted for approximately | 1.2% (2014: 10.5%)

of our total turover.

As far as our Company is aware, neither the Directors, their close associates, nor those
substantial shareholders who are interested in more than 5% of the number of issued
Shares or underlying Shares of our Company had any interest in the five largest customers

and suppliers of our Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group had not entered into any connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 3|
to the financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year had our Company
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract
of significance been entered into for the services provided by the controlling shareholder

or any of its subsidiaries to our Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is publicly available to
our Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of more than 25% of our Company's issued Shares as required under

the Listing Rules during the year.

OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 AND RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with China Development Bank
Corporation Hong Kong Branch on 22 November 2013 (the “2013 Facility Agreement”)
for a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$I,170 million. Pursuant to the 2013 Facility
Agreement, it will be an event triggering mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: () any one
or more of Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke jointly cease to control the Company
or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or indirectly through wholly-owned
subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital of our Company; (b) either of Baslow
or Bubbly Brooke sells or disposes of the issued share capital of our Company directly or
indirectly which in aggregate constitute more than 5% of the issued share capital of our
Company that beneficially owned by it directly or indirectly as at 22 November 2013; or
(c) other than, in each case, by reason of death, mental incapacity or critical illness, Mr.
Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the chief executive officer or the chairman of our Company,

or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ceases to be the Director.

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on 12 October
2015 (the “2015 Facility Agreement”) for a 42-month term loan facility of up to US$90
million (for the US dollar tranche) and HK$77.5 million (for the Hong Kong dollar tranche)
in aggregate. Pursuant to the 2015 Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering
mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one or more of Bubbly Brooke, Rongton
and Baslow jointly cease to control the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially
directly or indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries at least 30% of the issued share
capital of our Company; (b) either of Baslow or Bubbly Brooke sells or disposes of the
issued share capital of our Company directly or indirectly which in aggregate constitute
more than 5% of the issued share capital of our Company that beneficially owned by it
directly or indirectly as at 12 October 2015; or (c) other than, in each case, by reason of
death, mental incapacity or critical illness, Mr. Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the chairman of

our Company, or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ceases to be the Director.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Our Company's articles of association provide that each Director, secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits
of our Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or expenses which he
or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, our Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify our Director and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the code

of conduct regarding the securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with the standards required under the Model Code during

the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance practices.
Corporate governance practices adopted by our Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 49.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The environmental policies and performance of our Company are set out in the section

of "Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report™ of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

All of our business operations are based in China. We are required to comply with
a range of laws, regulations and measures in China which regulate the production of
industrial gases. The laws, regulations and measures in China regulating the production of

industrial gases in China include but not limited to the following:
*  Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China;

®  Measures for the Implementation of the Permits for the work safety of Hazardous

Chemicals Production Enterprises;

o Regulations of People's Republic of China on the Administration of Production

License for Industrial Products;

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Directors’ Report (continuea
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®  Measures for the Implementation of the Regulations of People’s Republic of China

on the Administration of Production License for Industrial Products; and
o Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous Chemicals.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, our Group was in compliance with PRC laws

and regulations governing the production of industrial gases in China.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS
The relationships with stakeholders of our Company are set out in the section of “Investor
relations” of the “CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis” of this annual

report.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR
END
There are no important events affecting our Company that have occurred since the end

of the financial year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee™) comprising
all three existing independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Yuanping (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 3| December 2015, and is of the view that our Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards, laws and regulations, and appropriate disclosures have

already been made.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 3| December
2015 have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants. A resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of our Company for the ensuing year will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Zhongguo Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report
REHEZ2E RIFHEWERE

INTRODUCTION

Established in 2001, our Company currently approximately 2,700 people across China,
and has become a leading supplier of on-site gases. We uphold the operation philosophy
of "maintaining rapid and sustainable growth” while put compliance with laws and
regulations as a precondition, give maximum consideration to the health and safety of our
employees, take significant consideration of the environment we live in, as well as achieve
maximum of energy efficiency in our operation. This year, we continued to maintain the
number one position among all the industrial gas suppliers in China in terms of revenue.
As such, we have the new responsibility of setting a role model for leading the continuous
improvement in areas of safety, environment and energy efficiency. We have formulated
appropriate continuous improvement policies and communicate the goal to every
member, management and staff alike, in the hope to realize their belief and pride. As an
organization, we hope we can ultimately achieve our goal of zero accident, zero emission

and maximum efficiency.

HEALTH & SAFETY

For any organization, it is very important to create a harmonious and safe working
environment. Safety is so important to us not only in the workplace, but also in all aspects
of our daily life. Therefore, as the management of the Group, we emphasize individual's
education and training to ensure that they are fully conscious and aware of the fact that
accidents can be reduced or eliminated whether at work or after work. In addition, during
the course of our training, we emphasize correction of behaviors of our employees so
as to correct attitudes, which is in tumn helpful in reducing risks of accidents. For logistics
drivers, we focus on reducing risk through the “Defensive Driving” training program. Al
these have demonstrated that we have been implementing the “Prevention-oriented”
safety policy. In future, we will continue with the improvement and will invite qualified
third party auditors to review our training methods and results every 6 months. We are

striving for the target of “zero accident”.

In 2015, our safety performance is as follows:
Zero fatalities

Lost Time Injury Rate: 0.67/ million man hours
Logistics Traffic Accident Rate: 2.59/ million km

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report continued
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Our Group is committed to providing and promoting the welfare for all its employees.
We provide all necessary safety protection facilities and equipment for every particular
work environment. We also provide employees with leisure activity rooms after their
work so that they can alleviate stress by exercising while enhancing interpersonal
communication. Our Group protects its employees from injury brought by potential
risks through all types of measures. Our Group makes use of safety, health, environment
and quality (“SHEQ") management system to identify potential sources of hazards in the
workplace, and establishes risk control standards and guidelines. Moreover, payment of
social insurance and arrangement of regular physical examination also provide guarantee

for the health of employees.

In the uture, we will continue seeking and improving occupational health management
plans and protecting employee’s physical and psychological health, so as to provide

favorable work conditions and reduce accident rate caused by human factors.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION & SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Noise produced during production is one of the main environmental protection issues
in our industry. We reduce noise according to all the noise attenuation standards. In
addition, we strive to achieve sustainable development, comply with the requirements
of new environmental laws and regulations and meet higher environmental performance
standards. All these have inspired our engineers to seek for continuous improvements in
technologies. Globalization not only prompts formation of new markets and environmental
protection laws and regulations, but also boosts limitation on using natural resources.
The education and training to staff in production areas and offices emphasize the need to
take care of and understand the value of all material resources, which in turn creates an

awareness of environmental protection featuring resources conservation.

AIR EMISSIONS

Apart from greenhouse gases, the Group also monitors the emission of air pollutants.
Usually, our Group's air separation equipment almost has no direct emission into the air.
However, during other production process (mainly through our customers), inorganic
gases such as CO, SO,, NO,, NH, and volatile organic compounds (“VOCs") are emitted
into the air. VOCs are emitted in metal coating and cleaning during the assembly of
cylinders, tanks and devices. In this regard, our Company works hard with customers on

developing solutions for reducing air emissions.
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report ccontinued
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WASTES

As previously mentioned, we arrange trainings for strengthening the awareness of
environmental protection featuring resources conservation. We make continuous efforts
to reduce or eliminate waste generation and adopt recycling processes wherever possible.
We treat all unavoidable waste in an environment-friendly manner so as to comply with
local laws and regulations. According to the PRC law, waste materials can be divided into
two categories, hazardous and non-hazardous. Wastes from our production mainly include
chemicals, wastes containing metals and cylinders post service life, which are dealt with
appropriately according to applicable regulations. If possible, we will design a production
closed-loop system to enhance utilization rate of raw materials and resources so as to

minimize waste generation.

WATER

Water is extremely important and valuable resource. Around 85% of the water used in
our business production is mainly used for cooling purpose and can be recycled. During
the recycling process, the water needs to be cooled down, during which process a
small part of the water will be lost and evaporate into the atmosphere. And therefore,
additional water supply is needed during this process. Less than 5% of the water is used
in chemical reaction process and also as the source of steam for local office buildings.
The very small amount of waste water created will be purified or fed into local industrial

treatment system.

POWER & ENERGY

Our production processes consume electricity and other forms of energies. Actually
almost 80% of our operation cost was spent on power supply. Therefore, the
management is extremely concerned about reduction of energy consumption, in
consideration of not only the cost but also environmental protection. In recent years, we
have set up a team specialized in reducing power consumption, and reviewing aspects
such as mechanical efficiency, process design, project engineering and energy circulation
system. We are currently forming continuous improvement measures to improve energy
efficiency and reduce emission of carbon dioxide (CO,) and wastes, heading toward the

goal of increasing efficiency by 1% per annum.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The Board is committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance to ensure
effective and responsible leadership for our Company and the protection of shareholders'

interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviation from the code provision A.2.1
of the Code which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be segregated. As at the date of this annual report, the chairman and the chief executive
officer of our Company is Mr. Zhongguo Sun. However, the Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and the authority of the Board. The Board
currently comprises three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, with independent non-executive Directors representing 50% of the Board,
which is higher than the requirements under the Listing Rules. Such a high percentage
of independent non-executive Directors on the Board can ensure that their views carry

significant weight and reflect the independence of the Board.

Mr. Sun was one of the main founders of our Group. He has been responsible for
operational management since the establishment of our Group. He has played an
important role in our business expansion. Mr. Sun possesses rich working experience in
the industrial gas industry businesse and excellent operational management ability. At
present, the Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and development
of our Group's businesses with Mr. Sun being both the chairman and chief executive
officer as it helps to expedite the Board's decision-making. The Board would still consider
segregating the role of chairman and chief executive officer to comply with the Code if

appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the

securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with the standards required under the Model Code during

the year ended 3| December 2015.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

Our Company has received annual confirmation from each of the three independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Our Company considers that all existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent parties in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules and are free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of

their independent judgements.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for achieving the corporate goals, formulating the development
strategy, regularly reviewing the organizational structure, and monitoring the business
activities and the performance of management so as to protect and maximize the interests
of our Company and our shareholders. Matters relating to the daily operations of our
Group are delegated to the management. During the year, the Board considered and
approved the annual budget and its performance under management supervision together
with the business reports from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved
the final results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the intemnal control and the financial matters of our

Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of six members, including;

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Fuya

Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. He Yuanping

Mr. Zhougguo Sun and Mr. He Yuanping being eligible, have offered themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The members of the Board represent a diverse and rich industry background with
appropriate professional qualifications. Please refer to the section headed “Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management” for the profiles of our Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board. Board members are free to

exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A4.| of the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, our independent non-executive Directors, are
each appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election when appropriate by
our Company in general meeting. The term of Mr. He Yuanping, our independent non-
executive Director, will expire on the date of the annual general meeting of our Company

to be held on or before 30 June 2016.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings
and the general meeting of our Company held during the year ended 3| December 2015

is set out in the table below:

PREFEMA ESSRECRABENE X
BRREZHBER HBEE - RETEH
1R B -

B W8 B 8% 1457 B B AALE ST BIE
X EROTEFAREEANEM WEE
B RRABUFNTEEDECEERTER
BrEEEHR=F  AHARARKRREARE
BEEF(WEE) BUFRTESMETLEL
TR 2016%F 6 A30 Ak 2 AT B FAIAR
ARRFEFAG BT -

EERESZEERENEELR
EMUBEBEN0ISFENA3NBILIFENESZS

FEFZEEEERARARRASEHNT
ERFHIMT

Board Committees

2015 Attendance ExZ88
annual Rate of Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
general Board Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
meeting  Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
2015RE (%) B g0 R% 8
Name of Directors s AFEAE EX993 CEUFEE ZESSE ZEE9E ZEegE ZEgeR
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Zhongsuo Sunft I/ 4/4 100% - - - -
Mr. Zhao Xiangti HERLE I/1 34 75% - - I/] I/]
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond
Struttfe £ Il 4/4 100% - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zheng Fuya Lty Il 44 100% n I/l I/l Il
Dr. Wang Ching TRiET Il 44 100% ) I/l - I
Mr. He Yuanping OlER:S I/1 4/4 100% 1 I/1 I/] -
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Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the

meetings. For other Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

The agendas and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner. Issues arising at Board meetings were properly discussed by the Chairman and

the Directors.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information with the advice of
the company secretary, to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board, all Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at our Company's expense for carrying out their

functions.

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the chairman
and the chief executive officer on governance matters, facilitating induction training
and professional development of Director, and taking and keeping minutes of all Board
committee meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are normally circulated to the
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors' inspection.

Director’s Training
Each newly appointed Director will be offered training by our Company upon the
appointment, so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of our Company's

business and they are fully aware of their duties as director under the laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company also issues latest information regarding corporate governance
and directors’ responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations to the Directors, to ensure their awareness of their responsibilities under
the laws and regulations. All Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant. Directors are requested to

provide their records of trainings they received in 2015 to our Company for record.
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Details of trainings that the Directors participated in 2015 are as follows:

Executive Directors

R2ISER - EFL2E

BEEERMT:

Independent Non-executive Directors

HTES BYFUTES
Mr. Zhongguo Mr. Trevor
Sun Raymond
(Chairman) Strutt
Zhongguo Mr. Zhao Trevor Mr.He  Mr.Zheng Dr. Wang
Sun Xiangti Raymond Yuanping Fuya Ching
bt HEE Strutt AR BED IR
(£FE) b b3 b3 binid A+
Key Changes of the Listing Rules FE (EMRAD &7 y y y y y V
Takeover and Mergers and (REMEE - AR y y y v \ V
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As a part of our training program for the Board, all Directors were provided with reports
from time to time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime during the year under review. A
number of reading materials were also provided to all Directors to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. In the future, our Company will continue to organize
various training and seminars for the Directors on the professional knowledge and latest

development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify our Directors
and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended

31 December 2015, no claim has been made against our Directors and senior officers.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance committee
(collectively the "Board Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of our Company's

affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances, at our Company's expense.

R
I
s |
g
e
H
sl
5]
all

ot

ERARFTEZERIF NN EOA
FAMBESTHFRERABLTRA - 27
REERLEMRENERNEE REROR
& HZRBEVHORABRAT2EES U
HEREZBRRBIIEMBARKE - KK AQ
AIMREEZRERENERATE  RFER
RERME - BEAESRRSERI R

o

mE>

ESReABENEARRRBERE
ARFELHBEEEARBUREST RS RE
SARBEHELANEEARSELBER
EoBHZEWISFNRANALEE BEZERE
BBEVEERE -

EExZEg

EEZEQERERTRENRRER 1A
E EERTREAEEREHABIEES
C BRBARDRIRE -




Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERRE @

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance with
the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. It is chaired by Mr. He Yuanping and
comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, all of whom

are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditors, review the financial statements,
oversee and provide material advice in respect to our financial reporting system and

oversee the internal control procedures of our Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee together with the management has
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by our Group and discussed
the Group's internal control and financial reporting matters, including review of the
annual results for the year ended 3| December 2014 and the interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2015, with recommendation to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject to our shareholders'
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the

external auditor of our Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance
with the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. During the year under review,
Dr. Wang Ching was the chairman of the remuneration committee and Mr. He Yuanping
and Mr. Zheng Fuya were the other two members of the remuneration committee, all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on the remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management, our retirement scheme and our performance assessment system and bonus

and commission policies.

The remuneration of Directors are based on their skills, knowledge, involvement in
our Company's affairs and the performance, with reference to the profitability of our

Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing market conditions.
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No Director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with
his or her own remuneration. The remuneration committee may also consult with
the chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and has access to professional advice if necessary. The major objective of the
remuneration policy is to ensure that our Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate

a high caliber team which is essential to the success of our Company.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed, amongst others,
the performance and remuneration policy of the executive Directors; and the grant of
share options to Mr. Zhongguo Sun, Mr. Trever Raymond Strutt and Mr. Zhao Xiangti had

been discussed and recommended to the Board.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 4 members of the senior management of our
Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 24 of this annual report, for the year

ended 31 December 2015 are set out below:

FriEE

Remuneration by Band

ESIERTHARTE2EAHEMENE
5t - R B GMA MERHAAEHEM
RTESHEMNER  TNVERHARRE
R FMEKEEBRABERADAEAR
5 BEREBRERTIEEN - BALRAN
KNEBEE -

EOEEN  FMEEeC B8R ()8
TEEZRARFMBE - 25 M Zhongguo
Sun %~ Trever Raymond Strutt Fo 4 KT
FERLBREEL SR MESSHRBRSE -

KRAERERE4k B (EEREIHNAE
REME)REZEWISFENAIIBILEFERN
HMESEFEHIMT

Number of Individual

A"

RMBO to RMB 1,000,000

RMB 1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000
RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000
RMB6,000,000 to RMB7,000,000

AR®EOTLE AR 1,000,0007T [
A 1,000,000 T E A K# 2,000,000 7T |
AR 3,000,000 T E AR 4,000,000 7T [
A 6,000,000 T2 AR 7,000,000 7T [

Nomination Committee
The Board established the nomination committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance
with the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. It is chaired by Mr. Zheng Fuya

and comprises two other members, namely Mr. He Yuanping and Mr. Zhao Xiangti.

The primary functions of the nomination committee are to make recommendations to

our Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on our Board.

The duties of the nomination committee also includes reviewing the structure, number
of members and composition of the Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the
appointment of chief executive officer; reviewing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and submitting proposals to the Board. The authority and duties

of the nomination committee are clearly set out in its terms of reference.
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During the vear under review, the nomination committee had made recommendations
to the Board conceming the re-election of Directors by shareholders pursuant to the
Articles of Association and with due regard to their performance and ability to continue
to contribute to the Board. The nomination committee had also reviewed the structure,
number, composition and diversity of the Board and the independence of the independent

non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

Our Company adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) in August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against

appropriate criteria, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates could

bring to the Board.

The nomination committee monitors, from time to time, the implementation of the policy,

and reviews, as appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its

effectiveness and considered that our Group fully implemented the Board Diversity Policy.

Compliance Committee

The Board established the compliance committee on 12 September 2009 with the written
terms of reference. It is chaired by Dr. Wang Ching and comprises two other members,
namely Mr. Zhao Xiangti and Mr. Zheng Fuya. The primary functions of the compliance

committee are to ensure compliance on regulatory matters and corporate governance.
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The work performed by the compliance committee during the year under review included
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and making
recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit control and risk
management. In addition, the compliance committee reviewed our Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, our Company's policies and practices on the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Directors with
the Model Code and our Company's compliance with the Code and the disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the consolidated financial statements of the annual and
interim reports. If the Directors were aware of material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, such uncertainties should be clearly and prominently set out and discussed

in detail in this Corporate Governance Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control of our Group is designed to help our Group protect its assets and
information. The presence of internal control empowers our Group to implement best
business practices in challenging business environment. Our Group's internal control
covers a number of in-house procedures and policies. The system comprises, among
others, the relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. The Group will also engage independent third party to review our internal

control policies from time to time.

The Board is responsible for our Group's system of internal control and its effectiveness. It
has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by our Group, including strategic planning, corporate governance, financial
reporting, core business processes, and compliance and risk management. Our Group
has conducted a high level review on the significant risks faced by our Group and has
reviewed the effectiveness of the intemnal control system for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control weaknesses nor significant breach

of limits or risk management policies.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability
to continue as a going concem as at 3| December 2015. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2015 on a going

concern basis.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
A statement by the external auditors of our Company, KPMG, is included in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Our Group's independent auditor is KPMG. KPMG is responsible for auditing and forming

an independent opinion on our Group's annual consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to our Company’s

auditor, KPMG, are as follows:

BULHEHE
AEENBUGEMAEFRE M EBA -
ERAEHMEBMARERAREFEAH
PHRERERBLER

EOEFERN  ENRENAREZSRMESE
SR EBAOMEMT :

Year ended 3| December

BZENA3NALEE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARETT

Audit service (including annual audit and interim review) EGRB (RRFEEZ LT HEMRSE) 5,430 5516
Non-audit services BRI 181 189
5611 5,705

Non-audit service includes tax service and other assurance services for financing.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
subsidiaries of our Company in respect of audit services amounted to RMBI.6 million
and non-audit services, including capital verification and assets valuation, amounted to

RMB30,000.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. Wong Sze Wing and Ms. Mok Ming Wai are our Company's joint company secretaries
and each of them has taken no less than |15 hours of relevant professional training during

the year ended 31 December 2015.

The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Mok Ming Wai, a director of KCS Hong
Kong Limited, is Ms. Wong Sze Wing, CFO and the other joint company secretary of our
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange after each shareholders’ meeting,

()  Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
(the “"EGM") may be convened by the Board on requisition of one or more
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our Company. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) concemed as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) concemed by the

Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition, sign the
requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company secretary or the

primary contact person of our Company.

(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the
Articles of Association. However, shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on our Company's website (www.yingdegas.com).
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(i)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written

enquires to our Company.

Note: Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquires.

Primary Contact Person
Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions or enquiries as mentioned

in (i), (i) and (ii) above to the primary contact person of our Company as set out below:

Name: Ms. Wong Sze Wing

Address:  Room 3212-13, 32/F, Tower Two, Times Square,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: 852-3100 0069

Email: huangsiying@yingdegas.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address, and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year under review, our Company made no changes to the Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of our Articles of Association is available on our

Company's website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website.

Further information about investor relations are set out on pages 19 to 20.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR EEES

epnac

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) set out on pages
66 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
[0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SOFB R H 4R E W
for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWNISF12A31AILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Pl ARETR ARETR

Revenue A 4 7,918,861 7,716,161
Cost of sales SHER AR (5,368,593)  (5237.253)
Gross profit E7 2,550,268 2,478,908
Other income A 5 32,875 26997
Selling expenses HEER (207,204) (243810)
Administrative expenses EREH (500,770) (466,039)
Profit from operations Reha 1,875,169 1,796,056
Finance income KA 6(a) 30,851 27,985
Finance costs BIRRR 6(a) (968,324) (520018)
Share of results of associates YN 3 13,881 (10,120)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEERAIER (1,087) (1,062)
Profit before taxation BRE A0 AU 6 950,490 292,841
Income tax PG 7 (417,785) (380,679)
Profit and total other comprehensive RERBREMGEREEE

income for the year 532,705 912,162
Attributable to: UT&AELR:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERFEA 535,94 903905
Non-controlling interests FEE R R 2 (3,236) 8,257
Profit and total other comprehensive AERBREMGEEREAE

income for the year 532,705 912,162
Earnings per share (RMB) BREMN(ARERT) 10

Basic B2 YN 0.30 0.50

Diluted e 0.30 049

The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends 5 74 B E 5% 195 B A 5T RN BT B ak 60 A2 X
payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are B o REFBENTARAIRRAOBREFHE
set out in Note 30(b). R 30(b) ©

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R
SO R
at 31 December 2015
20155 12A31 B
(Expressed in Renminbi)

N WRE=)
(AAR™3IR)

2015 2014

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P & ARBTRT AR®TE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net WE - BER&E *E [l 10,274,282 10,014,588
Construction in progress TEIR 12 3,013,037 3,055,457
Lease prepayments MEBMAHE 13 416,483 348,859
Intangible assets R EE 14 47,863 51,836
Receivables under finance lease EREEHER 15 10,638 11,536
Interest in associates RECE R RIRER 17 518,671 483,731
Interest in joint ventures REERAIMER 18 263,694 268,561
Other non-current assets At EReEE 19 1,081,786 1,188996
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 7(d) 165,006 141,802
Total non-current assets FRBEERRE 15,791,460 15565366
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 102,422 97,758
Trade and other receivables FE R 0 e L A R MRGRR 2 2,682,864 2,844,605
Receivables under finance lease EREERER |5 2,117 2,117
Income tax recoverable Al [B AT 1535 7(c) 7,604 3,843
Pledged bank deposits BEMRTER 2 309,526 131,026
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 23 678,450 606,359
Total current assets mEEELH 3,782,983 3,685,708
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings EE 24 1,603,338 1,721,138
Trade and other payables FETER AR R LA FE (S 3008 25 2,285,508 2,42228|
Obligations under finance lease REHERRE 26 190,241 324,110
Income tax payable S PT{S R 7(c) 184,940 186453
Total current liabilities RBAEAR 4,264,027 4,653,982
Net current liabilities REBAETHE (481,044) (968,274)
Total assets less current liabilities EELBERRBAR 15,310,416 14,597,092
The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements. FT4EZEE 195 BOM T RAT BIRRAAEK
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

SHBBEAARRR @

at 3| December 2015
20154124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)

AAREFIT)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P eE AR®TR ARBTR
Non-current liabilities S h=R
Borrowings fE 24 8,060,162 7,379,592
Obligations under finance lease MEREGRE 26 224,855 351,294
Other non-current liabilities HitsERe A 27 53,376 51,199
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR 7(d) 93,431 71,484
Total non-current liabilities FRBaELsE 8,431,824 7,853,569
Net assets EERE 6,878,592 6,743,523
Equity Ei
Share capital R 29 12 12
Reserves @ 6,707,652 6,635,620
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders AAREGEREABGERER
of the Company 6,707,664 6,635,632
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 170,928 107,891
Total equity k] 6,878,592 6,743,523

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2016.

Zhongguo Sun

Director

EZ

The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEHERBBR
for the year ended 31 December 2014
BEWI4FNA3IALEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBIIT)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARAIERHEAERL

Non-
Share Share Statutory Other Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
JERERR
(i BA  RDEE OAERE AR REEA &t RRER  EnReR
RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR AREBTT ARGTT ARETT ARMTT ARETR
(Note 29)  (Note 30(c)) (Note 30(d)) ~ (Note 30(¢))
(329 (WEE300) (HaE30)  (HFE30()
At | January 2014 RWI14F 1A 1H 12 2983818 621877 (352400) 2871372 6124679 105089 6229768
Total comprehensive REGANER AT
income for the year = = = = 903,905 903905 8,257 912,162
Eflect on Share Allotment Scheme R ERE G BIF/ 2 i - - - 7490 - 7490 - 7490
Appropriations Ei - - 136,163 - (136163) = - =
Dividends approved in respect BALEENEERRE
of the previous year 30(b) - - - - (32997 (329297) - (329297)
Acquisition of a non-controlling ~ EEIEEIRAR R
shareholder - = = (7,135 = (7,135 (5:455) (12.590)
Purchase of own shares Txth I - (64010) - - - (64010) - (64010)
At 31 December 2014 R014% 12831 B 122919808 758,040 (352045) 3309817 6635632 107,891 6,743523
The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements. FT4EZE 195 BT AR BRERAAEK
2o e
ERERRBEEBEARAA
2015 F




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued

SHEREZEHR @

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BZE201551A31BILERE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRFRERA AR
Non-
Share Share Statutory Other Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER
iFis Ra  RGEE AERE  BtRE  REEN i RRER  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMT:R
(Note29)  (Note 30(c)) (Note 30(d)) (Note 30(e))
(W29 (MEE0()  (HE30d)  (FHEE30()
At | January 2015 ROI551AIH 22919808 758,040 (352,045) 3309817 6635632 107891 6743523
Total comprehensive e lneE
income for the year - - - - 535,941 535,941 (3,236) 532,705
Eflect on share schemes RE I 28 - - - 17325 - 17325 - 17,325
Appropriations R - - 127,382 - (127,382) - - -
Dividends approved in respect BELEREM
of the previous year BERRE 300) - - - - (369867)  (369867) - (369,867)
Interim dividends approved in respect 5 BN E & R K)
of the current interim period BERTHARE 300) - - - - (1094 (111,094) - (111,094)
Capital contribution from FHERBRLE
a non-controling shareholder - - - - - - 68,000 68,000
Purchase of non-controlling interests 8 8 IR s - - - 2n) - 2n) (1,727) (2,000)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12431 B 22919808 885,422 (334993) 337415 6,707,664 170928 6,878,592
The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements. FT4BEEF 19S5 BNME AR BRROEK
5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHESRER

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNAIALEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

[ W=\
(AAR™3IR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARBTRT AR®TE
Operating activities ReEH
Profit before taxation B 25t A 1 950,490 1,292,841
Adjustments for: FHEBIER :
Depreciation e 753,669 682,585
Amortisation i 12,947 12,483
Finance income KA (30,851) (27,985)
Finance costs MIHA 968,324 520018
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE - RER
equipment, construction in progress ERIRNERFE 10,615 336
Share of results of associates NI E (13,881) 10,120
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEERAIER 1,087 1,062
Impairment loss on other non-current assets HitgEne & ERERK 10,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss on property, Mx - BE > RERER
plant and equipment, construction in progress THRAERLERD - (70,338)
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,664) (29,196)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE 0 B R e Lt B KRR BE A (378,756) (640,874)
Increase in trade and other payables R 18 BR 0 S Lt B A< BRI SE 176,138 87,166
2,455,118 1,838,218
Interest received EWFIE 27,414 10933
Interest paid EARFIE (683,787) (558249)
Income tax paid [RARPEIRES) (424,316) (369,054)
Income tax refund PrSTR T - 3,206
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHISNRELFHR 1,374,429 925,054

The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement «continueq)

B RERER m®
for the year ended 31 December 2015
BZEWISF12A3IALER

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETRL AREBTZT
Investing activities REED
Capital expenditure BARRX (1,123,471)  (2013,150)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BEERBITETIEM (178,500) (66,003)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HENE  BE - RERER
and equipment, construction in progress TRMEHE 427,938 1,724
Proceeds from disposal of an associate REM S ARG 25,000 140,043
Collection of receivables under finance lease Yo B et A B R 2,245 2,245
Payment for investment in associates REBE NR X NFIB (24,041) -
Payment for investment in joint ventures RESEAAIXNNE - (50,000)
Payment for other investment in equity securities HiRAE F 1R E X 5IE - (150,000)
Payment for purchase of non-controlling interests FEIRTERRRER Y 508 (2,000) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash paid YR BB A Rl s B A -
MEZAHRE - (5,500)
Dividend received from an associate B A RIRE 2,700 -
Dividend received from other investment BRE MR AR S - 1,704
Repayment from an associate BEARERNE - 46,193
Net cash used in investing activities REFHANESFE (870,129) (2092,744)
The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements. FT4EEE 195 BHM T RAT BRR AL
B
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continvea)
EHBEESRER @)

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNAIALEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

P
(AAR™3IR)

2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARBTRE

Financing activities MEEE

Proceeds from loans BRI 2,562,054 1,869,918

Repayment of loans BEER (3,103,921) (1,282,960)
Proceeds from finance lease transaction MERERHMERE 130,500 -
Payment of obligations under finance lease BEMEHERBEXMRK (426,052) (266,282)
Proceeds from senior notes BIBERBMENE - 1,516,234

Proceeds from corporate bonds BITARRESFGHA 953,340 -
Proceeds from allotted shares BERMNATEHE 28 - 1,193

Payment for repurchase of senior notes BARBEE X NFIE (142,774) =
Payment for repurchase of shares R BB T 50R - (64,010)
Capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder IR R BTG RIE 68,000 -

Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the Company {42 AIIRE AR B (480,961) (329,297)
Net cash (used)/generated from financing activities MEED (), FENALEE (439,814) 1,444,796

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEMEMFE 64,486 277,106

Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIBIBRERELEEY 606,359 342,546

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERSBNTE 7,605 (13,293)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RI2A3I BRERALEEY 23 678,450 606,359
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The notes on pages 74 to 195 form part of these financial statements.
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Not

es to the Financial Statements

8 7% R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

BIIR)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (the “Company"") was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group)
are principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company's shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 October 2009.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations promulgated by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinueq)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

N W=\
(LAAR™3IR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of financial statements,
the directors are required to consider whether the Group can continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
adequate cash flow from operations to meet its debt obligations as they
fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external financing to meet its

committed future capital expenditures.

The Group successfully issued corporate bonds of aggregate amount of
RMB980,000,000 in October 2015. At 31 December 2015, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB678,450,000 (2014: RMB606,359,000);
the Group also had net current liabilities of RMB481,044,000 (2014:
RMB968,274,000) and total borrowings of RMB9,663,500,000 (2014:
RMB9,100,730,000). The Group regularly monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirement in

the short and longer term.

The directors have reviewed current performance and cashflow projections
as part of their assessment, and after making enquiries and carefully
considering the matters described above, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the Company will be able to meet their
liabilities as they fall due and will have adequate resources to continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

As a result, the directors have concluded that the combination of these
circumstances no longer represents a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's and the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared

on a basis that the Group will be able to continue as a going concem.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in

associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

= financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as trading

securnities (see Note 2(f)); and

= derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinueq)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies
The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs that are first

effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

= Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans:

Employee contributions

—  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

—  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the Group's
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes 2(o) or (p)

depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

R
I
b
g
g
=
=i
5
al

£ ot

2

FEEHHE®E)
d) MEARMFERRRER(E)

IR DI A 0 B Bk R
REVERN - BARAEERAA

MRS NFRZ o FHERBCRIE
HAKENES  BRAFHERL

BRAR LGS WS BREIFHER
BREARREZHRAAZED
B REHAMEREMES BER
RES o SHERBCRED R A AL
ERRHELRAEANEMBEH
BEECRBZAENEEREMN T
200) 3 (p) EB HIBRAKZT
REBAR -

RN B B A R AR Y
BR2Y  RERRXHER - B
EA FHERPE TR IR
REDNT AR  URRAEE

ROEE BT RUEEETS
B BEGTERRME -
EAREEBEA T BB A AHES

%'\%WF A2 SRR e
RBEE - LB EER
BRHER - EW%EEMW%QE
RN EXEHEBAAABE

R ZEERERBENLER
MARBERRWE ) S ME
- BRAERBE ARG E QA
KRB IR R KA (2 R
2(e)) °




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

2

B5R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.

Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including

participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the
joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment

continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).

R
I
b
g
g
=
=i
5
al

£ ot

2

FTESHBRE)

(e)

BENREAEQNR(H)

EAEBEBEATIAUN

T é%@?%%m%
BEKERE
&EE?EW$¢I£W&%%

Al G EDRARETE TR
% IRZREE T A FRARRSN

Rt - AEENERRIRERAR
BRNRE B RARERES
FRFAKEEE LRBEARNA
ZRRIEFRE

AEBEBENARAERRZE
RHMELNAERRBS - PEA
SERBRE T b D RRE
i BERORERERBTCER
BELBRME  RELRERBE
SENRER VR -

IREE RRINR AR AREEA
ﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ RE R
SRER  MEEBREDER

=7
o °

Rtz BASETBEBED
AREATYENSETBHEER
AR REES - RZWEREFTNE
HERERERRE - HEHHRK
AR ERENERER - EUREE
BRBRETOEANREEAY
2 hsktRES 2 BA AR BER
R ZERRTREENLIERN
SYENEIE S EPIGE




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

2

%3

|7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price, unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(u)(ii).

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see Note 2(K)).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015

2

TESHHE @)

(f

HitRAEHRE
AEBRBRAESFRE (RHB
AR BELANAERANERE
BRON RIBRSRAT -

B %&ﬁmﬁﬁmumﬁfh
BEIT E—RERURE K
#ﬁ%&ﬁ%@%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%i
B R - E\ﬁﬂ/&ﬁ{ﬁ@—ﬁ/{—bsn
E(HREERABRERETS
RE IRBBUBENSNEH
AHE) - BRIRRZEBARK - &
UTRAN - ZRABREAAN R
BORX A - ZEREEBERZ
RETADBHE

REBMFENBEFREFEAN
BHEEIIT - MBI RENIZK
AEREERNBETER - R
EREMR EAnEEEHE
& FTEENERERINERT
HER - ARZERERIMKRE R
R F E 2(0) (i) BUR FER - 1
RERTERNFREIEELT
BEEMRERFE -

A ZIEE S RE K ARRE
BRYIR(BRME2K)



Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

2

JII7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Dividend income from equity
securities is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set

out in Note 2(u)(i)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(k)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and equipment pending installation, and is initially recognised
at cost. Cost comprises cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(w)). The
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any
delays in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant

PRC authorities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings |5 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5- 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable (see Note 2(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@)

Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis from the date they are available for use and
over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 20 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retum
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except for land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in Note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(k).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged

to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges (continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property or is held

for development for sale.

Receivables under finance lease

Where the Group leased out assets under finance lease, the initial
direct costs incurred on such assets are recorded as receivables
under finance lease. Finance income implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the receivables for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of land use rights.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation is charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK@)
(k) Impairment of assets k EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables () BEABHREREWFIEN
BEER
Investments in equity securities and current and non-current DA BERAZS - 5k
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified WolE AR HHEZESHIK
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each AEHEERREEIERE
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of BWHIE  eRGERES
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable RETEH  UEEREE
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of HENREDR  HENE
the following loss events: BN R BEAEERTHE
BBEPIBINT—ELS
BEEEE:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBALBRERHMK
PR
= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in - EREH iR
interest or principal payments; sk B E 2 F B gk A
%
= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or — EBARAUEHE
other financial reorganisation; ERETHMHBE
8
—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or - BE -mE gy
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; ERBENBEARE
and REBATRIMZ
2.k
- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an - BRESBHFRENAAR
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. BELREAIHE
TREERKAE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with Note 2(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with Note 2(Kk)(ii).

loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material.

Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not

reversed.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

() Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

(continued)

For trade and other receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit

risk characteristics similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK@)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) EERER)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) HittEENHEE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end REEREHR - AL
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following Kz BREEFHAEE T
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised EERTEBRETR 3
no longer exists or may have decreased: NERRNREBEEE T

BRESAECERD |

—  property, plant and equipment; - BE BEESR

—  construction in progress; - EEIR:

~  lease prepayments; -  THERANFE:

—  intangble assets; - BYAE:

—  other non-current assets (excluding receivables); and - HuErHEEE

REYR) Rk

—  investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. - RBLAR - BZEA

AREEARINRE °
If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is MREREMAETR - U
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet available ZEENALDEBEESE
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not e ) N A 0 o =
there is any indication of impairment. AR ERARENEREE -

SEHRFERTRELH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see Notes 2(k) (i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only

at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

Occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment

of doubtful debts.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an

equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes
is measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at
the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either the

note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time of conversion,
is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is

released directly to retained profits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Convertible notes (continued)

(ii)

Other convertible notes
Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component are

accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible
notes is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see Note 2(g)). Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of the convertible note are allocated to the liability and
derivative components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the

derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(g). The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated using the effective interest

method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and liability components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the carrying

amounts of both components is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with Note 2(t) (i), trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at

cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligations for contributions to PRC local government defined
contribution retirement plans pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, which is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees, are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)  Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of shares granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the shares were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the total estimated fair value of
the shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the share is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the share

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the share-based payments are arranged through trust and
the Company transfers cash to the trust to enable the trustee to
buy shares of the Company on the market, the shares purchased are
treated as treasury shares of the Company and the purchase of shares
in the market by the trust has no effect on the financial statements of

the Company.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred

tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they

relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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AAREFIT)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)  Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the

current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm'’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 2(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(AARESIT)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FTESFBR (R
(u)  Revenue recognition (v) WAER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or WARNB WS ERRENARE
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to ERTEH o RLENRZR A 6L

SRANEER - MU A KA A(m
BA) X Eemn] St 0 A

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

FERETIEENBRER -
()  Sale of goods iy WHEER
Revenue is recognised when gas products are delivered at the WAERBERBERRP
customers’ premises or collected by the customer which is taken BREFIRER  BIRFE

BlZRBEERNEMAE
m@mﬂﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ%u%

to be the point in time when the customer has accepted the gas

products and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue

excludes value added tax and other sales taxes and is after deduction 2

of any trade discounts.

(i)  Service income

Service income from the rendering of services is recognised when the

related services are rendered.

o WA B RERREM
EER - AEMREMHE
g

(i) BRBRA
K B HR A AR S O AR TS WA
REBBREEER -

(i)  Dividends @iy BB
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the JE ETIRE A B U AR R
shareholder's right to receive payment is established. B ER K T Y A B S

o
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an altemative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are

eamed.
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(AARBFITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

\0

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into RMB at
the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC") prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the applicable
PBOC rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using applicable PBOC rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

applicable PBOC rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x)  Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

R
I
s |
g
e
H
=i
5
alj

ot

2 EESHBUR(
(x) BB (E

&)

)

b) MAEATHEEZ-NEERK
GRS SE: ]k Y

()

(iif)

CENTEERR—
SETHAKE (B R
AINSHBRREA
HEERRER ) -

LERSN—RLE
HBEATSLEA
AR EAZRIN
— RO EMEERE
HBEATSLEA
) -

MREEXRB—ES

ZHHEERAR

LEE-REZHL
ENAERARS -
FORREE=HE
FHBELT -

tPER-EBEKRE
Mzt &l - B @A E
ANXBARKEE
AAKE B T E

o

mo

\




114

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x)  Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies (continued):

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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5I7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases
in the PRC. Although the industrial gases are sold to on-site and merchant
customers, the Group's most senior executive management regularly
review their combined financial information to assess the performance and
make resource allocation decisions. Accordingly, no segment information is

presented.

Substantially all of the Group's external customers and non-current assets

are located in the PRC.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial position and financial performance are sensitive to accounting
methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of these
financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that
are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis, management
evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties
affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set out in Note
2. The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these financial

statements.

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

()  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimates.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable, this asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the level of sales
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales
revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment change or reversal of impairment

in future years.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

@)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(continued)

(i)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Group has entered into long-term gas supply contracts with on-
site customers for periods up to 30 years. The production facilities
are built on or in close proximity to the on-site customers for the
supply of industrial gases to such customers (“on-site facilities”). The
Group receives fixed annual amounts over the terms of the long-term
gas supply contracts plus variable charges based on the quantity of
industrial gases supplied. The Group also sells gas products produced

from the on-site facilities to merchant customers.

In determining whether the arrangement contains a lease, the Group
has considered the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts.
Pursuant to the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts, the on-
site customers do not have the right to operate or control physical
access to the on-site facilities. In addition, gas products produced
from the on-site facilities are also sold to merchant customers.
The amounts sold to the merchant customers are more than an
insignificant amount of the total gas products produced from the on-
site facilities. Accordingly, the Group concluded that the arrangement

of long-term gas supply contracts does not contain any lease.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 28, 33(e), and 32(d) contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share options in share schemes, fair
value of financial instruments and the contingent liabilities relate to possible

losses that may occur in the future.
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4 REVENUE 4
The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold or

services provided, net of value added tax.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:

KA
AEBIBETRANETIRRABEER
HE - WARRBERRIRERBER
BRGE - PEEE -

TEMBRANSEIIRAT :

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR

Sales of industrial gases to on-site customers HEIZERBTHSHERER 6,886,264 6,703,504
Sales of industrial gases to merchant customers HETERBETIERF 824,593 914,237
Revenue from other related services HinAARBRA 208,004 98,420

7,918,861 7,716,161

The Group's customer base is diversified and all customers are from the PRC.
During the year ended 3| December 2015, the Group had one customer that
individually exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue, being RMB888,957,000 (2014:
RMB810,196,000).

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in

AEENEFPHBENESHLITHMH
ReBEER HE15F12A318 1
FE AEBE-2EPMANRS
BRAKREBRAI% EXZEAA
K #888957,0007T(20145F : A K ¥
810,196,0007T)

BREFNEERTRRFHNME

Note 33(b). 33(b) *
5  OTHER INCOME 5 HtlA
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTR
Profit on repurchase of senior notes (Note 24(f)) EIEEEE R B (P 24(F) 19,568 =
Government grant BT 8 18,559 12,785
Patent licensing income EREIEERA - 27,384
Disposal of equity investment BEERIERE - (20914)
Others Hith (5,252) 7742
32,875 26997
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 FBRBAIFE
BEAIREE MG (GEA) -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETRL
(@)  Finance (income)/costs: @ BBKA),/HAE:

Interest income FEWA (27,415) (26,540)
Finance income on receivables under finance lease ERREMERNRERA (1,346) (1,445)
Total interest income FI A 85T (28,761) (27,985)
Gain on remeasurement of BitfTA e T ANNE

derivative financial instruments (2,090) —
Finance income A (30,851) (27,985)
Interest on borrowings EECUE) 712,133 595,085
Finance charges on obligations under finance lease HEHEARNREER 35,244 50,817
Total interest expenses M B 4 st 747,377 645,902
Less: borrowing costs capitalised W - BAMEE AR (103,046) (133,607)
Foreign currency exchange loss ERREPS 323,993 7427
Loss on remeasurement of B TAESRMIAMNERX

derivative financial instruments - 296
Finance costs B HSPK AR 968,324 520018

937,473 492,033

Borrowing costs have been capitalised AR ARA TRIEE AL -

at the following rates:
Capitalised interest rate (per annum) BN E(EE) 2.8%-8.1% 2.9%-8.1%

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinueq)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

N W=\
(LAAR™3IR)

6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

6

BR B0 50 M ()
BHRAMBER R GIA) () -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTR
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIMZEK:

Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits Fe I8 fEAREN 286,929 314,402

Contributions to defined E R TR IR B0 5R
contribution retirement schemes 29,744 30,541
Expenses of share schemes (Note 8 and 28) BinzTEIZ R (ME s - Miat2s) 8,199 6,297
324,872 351,240

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (see Note 8).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group's PRC
subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the respective local government authorities whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates in the range of

10% to 22% of the eligible employees' salaries during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000

(HKD25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

beyond the annual contributions described above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREF

I'R)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

6  ERBAIAE(®)

BRAMBEE R GIA) ()

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P ARMTRE ARETRL
()  Other items: () HAtER:
Utilities NHER
— Electricity —EE 3,580,277 3,540,856
~ Steam — & 649,099 622,344
Depreciation e I 753,669 682,585
Amortisation i3
— Land lease premium —MEBMRIE 8,064 7,669
— Intangible assets —-BREE 14 4,883 4814
Auditors” remuneration BER e
— Audit services —EURE 6,987 6,356
— Non-audit services —IRERRE 184 22
Operating lease charges: minimum REMEER  ZEMHE
lease payment (land and buildings) FTE(THEEE) 17,720 21,090
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HE - RER
equipment, construction in progress ERIBMERTE 10,615 336
Loss on disposal of an associate REMEARNER - 20914
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) on R/ (EE) MR EER
— Trade and other receivables — AR % EL A e Uk 5 OR 143,577 175,484
— Non-current assets (Note |1 (f)) —JERBEE (M 11()
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE I - (37,627)
Construction in progress EREIRE 12 - (32711)
— Other non-current assets —HiERBEE 10,000 -

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

PP
(LAAR™3IR)

7 INCOME TAX 7 FREH
(a)  Taxation in profit or loss @ FFARZMBIE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETRL
Provision of PRC income tax for the year FEPREFER 419,042 438,477
Deferred tax EIEHA (1,257) (57.798)
417,785 380,679
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FERILRZERRETENS
rates HABREEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Profit before taxation Bk 750 AT 1) 950,490 1,292,841
Expected PRC income tax expense at the B205%EE R KRR EL
statutory tax rate of 25% REMEHER 237,623 323210
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR ENERNGBTE 1,593 2,306
Effect of tax losses REBRNTE 21,944 7,987
Differential tax rate on subsidiaries' results (Note ())) FT/B 72 WA BFE = Z Bl (FI5E () 134,226 38,351
Tax on distributable profits of subsidiaries s IR B 2 Bl A R
in the PRC (Note (ii)) FIBEBIE (BIEE (i) 8,509 (2,256)
Tax effect in respect of share of results of EIEBERAIREE AT
associates and joint ventures RENRBEYE (3,199) 2,795
Others At 17,089 8,286
Actual income tax expense ERAEHRAX 417,785 380,679
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

7

BIIR)

INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates (continued)

Notes:

()

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Group
sustained losses for the purposes of Hong Kong profits tax during the current

and prior years.

The provision for current PRC income tax is based on a statutory rate of
25% (2014: 25%) of the assessable profit as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which operate in the western developing region of
the PRC are granted the preferential tax rate of 15%, pursuant to the relevant
documents issued by the state and local tax bureau of the PRC during 2015.

Withholding tax at 109%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, is imposed
when dividends are distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate
holding company outside mainland China for earnings generated beginning on
| January 2008. Undistributed eamings generated prior to | January 2008 are

exempted from such withholding tax.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinueq)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFITR)

7

INCOME TAX (continued) 7 FiSBi(E)
() Income tax (recoverable)/payable in the consolidated statement of ) AEHBBRREATKE) FE
financial position FrEH
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
At | January RIAIR 182,610 109,981
Provision for PRC income tax for the year FEREREH 419,042 438,477
PRC income tax paid BN EMREHR (424316) (369,054)
PRC income tax refund Bl SRR T - 3206
At 31 December RI12A31H 177,336 182,610
Representing: & -
Income tax recoverable AR B ST (7,604) (3.843)
Income tax payable e A {550 184,940 186,453
177,336 182,610
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(i)  The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements are

7 Frig®i (&)

BRELHHEERAER

() AFFERRRAEDNE
UFRIE (BE)/ BENERK

(d)

as follows: AAREBIMT :
Property, ~ Allowance Tax loss Profits Accrued
plantand  for doubtful carry  expectedto  expenses not
equipment debts forwards distribute yet paid Total
(Note)
nE- B B HAXA
BREREE  REER BER 2RNE  EREA @zt
(rt)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR ARETr ARETR
Deferred tax arising from: ERHBHAT
BREL:
At | January 2014 RW14%1A1R (1478) (12592) (61,843) 63393 = (12520)
(Credited)/charged to AT
profit or loss (3t A)/ ks (19341) 26 16512 (2256) (52.939) (57.798)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A318 (20819) (12366) (45,331) 61,137 (52939) (70318)
At | January 2015 RWISEIAIA (20819) (12,366) (45,331) 61,137 (52,939) (70,318)
(Credited)/charged to el
proft or loss (FtA)/ 1% (19,003) (4401) 2,261 8508 11,378 (1,257)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12318 (39.822) (16,767) (43,070) 69,645 (41,561) (71,575)
Note: Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits represent temporary MI3E - R FEEEER 1B

differences relating to the distributable profits accumulated since |
January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC that are expected
to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(I HETI= )
(LAAR™3IR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position:

7

Fra%i (@)

(d)

BABLHREERSE(ER)
(i) AHABRRAROALE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL

Net deferred tax asset recognised RE B R R PHER
in the statement of financial position BLETIAE EFRE 165,006 141,802
Net deferred tax liability recognised RE B S R PR
in the statement of financial position EEHEAEFE (93,431) (71,484)
71,575 70318
(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) RERELEHEEE

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating to the distributable
profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC, that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future,
amounted to approximately RMB6,146,491,000 (2014: RMB4,942,461,000).
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on distribution of these retained earnings as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AAREFIT)

8  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 8 EBHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong REEB(A BEAIE 383(1) EECR A
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information (BN 08B ER)E_HoRE
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: REEHMWEB25MT
2015
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme option
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total scheme Total
(Note)
e
BER BINERN BRE
#E  RMBRR  BERL AR it EE | At
(BfE)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARMTR AR%TR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARET:R
Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun - 1,661 4,691 - 6,352 1,193 7545
Zhao Xiangti R - 793 - 64 857 298 1,155
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond
Strutt - 1,212 2,031 14 3,257 596 3853
Independent non- BUAHTEE
executive directors
Zheng Fuya gEo 1l - - - 1l - 24l
Wang Ching IR 24l - - - Al - 21|
He Yuanping GRS 193 - - - 193 - 193
Total &t 675 3,666 6,722 78 [1,14] 2,087 13,228

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBFIR)

8  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EBFM@E
2014
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
Directors'’  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme option
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total scheme Total
(Note)
EE
R R IR e
wEe  EtEN  BEZL SEER N i3l @t
(Fitit)

RMBOOO  RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTE ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREBTR ARETR

Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun = 1,636 3240 = 4876 697 5573
Zhao Xiangti HBE - 808 - 76 884 348 1232
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond

Strutt = 2,039 1,007 12 3058 174 3232
Incependent non- BUHHTEE

executive directors

Zheng Fuya gss 317 - - - 317 - 317
Wang Ching IR 285 - - - 285 - 285
He Yuanping GRS m - - - m - m
Total it 824 4483 4247 88 9,642 1219 10861
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

0 75 R Y L

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the

Group's share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured according to the

Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2(r) (ii).

The details of these benefits, including the principal terms and number of option granted, are

disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the directors’ report and Note

28(a).

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2014: two) are directors

whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in

respect of the other three (2014 three) individuals are as follows:

EEHM(#)
PfEE -

HREEANEERBEETE TR TESR
BN AR 28 - ZEBREME 200 T
BRI A RBBRMD N R P2 G BEKA
HiSH -

B B - BEEERRRET
BnE - REZSRETHBRETEE
AP R 28(a) IR o

BREHMAL
IERRHEMALREMA(2014F : M@
RIRES  EFMRMEsRHRE - £
B=R(2014% : =8) ATHFMEE
JUINE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETR

Salaries and other emoluments e REAMET 3,356 3,547
Discretionary bonuses MIBIEAL - 3422
Share Allotment Scheme W% {7 Bl 2 5T 21708 1,798 1,672
Retirement scheme contributions RIRBRFT B R 172 185
5,326 8,826

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBFIR)

9  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 EBREFHMALE
The emoluments of the three (2014: three) individuals with the highest emoluments Z=2(04F: ZR)BRFHALH
are within the following bands: SN FE Ty EE :

Number of individuals

N |
2015 2014
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000 & 7T
(RMBI,206,001 to RMBI,607,000) (AR 1,206,001 TZ AR 1,607,0007T) 2
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T Z 3,000,000 A 7T
(RMB2,009,001 to RMB2,41 1,000) (AR#2,009,001 TZEARM2411,0007T) |
HKD6,000,001 to HKD#6,500,000 6,000,001 77T Z 6,500,000/ 7T
(RMB4,822,001 to RMBS5,224,000) (AE¥4822,001 TZ AR 5224,0007T) - |
3 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8175

(Expressed in

(AAREF

[0 EARNINGS PER SHARE

@)

R ML

Renminbi)

I'R)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB535,941,000
(2014: RMB903,905,000) and the weighted average number of shares of
[,793,173,500 issued and fully paid ordinary shares (2014: 1,805,037,816

ordinary shares) during the year, calculated as follows:

(2)

10 BREN

SREXRF
BREARFRRAANRLA
BREGHEAEGABAR
#535941,000(20145 : A
R #9039050007c )+ WU K &F
NEZRTNHEMETH LR
B 1,793,173,500 B (2014 F -
1,805,037 816 LBR)FTEMT :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR NETSE B

2015 2014
Issued ordinary shares at | January RIA I BEBETEER 1,793,173,500 1,806,830,000
Effect of Share Allotment Scheme (Note 28 (b))  BR{DERE 5+ EIMS 2 (FI3E28(b)) - 80819
Effect of shares repurchased R EENTE - (1,873,003)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RI12A31 BEBRmMETHEA

as at 31 December

1,793,173,500 1,805,037,816

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 10 BREFNG@E)
(b) Diluted earnings per share b)) EREERA
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit BREBEERFRERADAL R
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of BEZEBEAEBGLGIBARE
RMB535,941,000 (2014: RMB911,103,000) and the weighted average 535941,0007L(2014F : A R &
number of ordinary shares of 1,793,180,733 shares (2014: 1,846,510,850 911,103,0007C ) + BA K& N #& F 19
ordinary shares), calculated as follows: A% 1,793,180,733 A% (2014 5 -
1846,510,850 E3BA)FHEMT :
(i)  Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company () ARARLTBEREREEAR
(diluted) EME(#5F)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTR
Profit attributable to LTRRERA ARGEMNE
ordinary equity shareholders 535,941 903,905
After tax effect of fair value loss RREF AL BEEDBR(HE)
on the warrants - 901
After tax effect of expenses recognised BB EIERER (T12)
on the Share Allotment Scheme - 6,297
Profit attributable to ordinary ERRIERFEA
equity shareholders (diluted) FEAEHE (88) 535,941 911,103

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(i  EBBRBMETHHE (BE)

2015 2014
Weighted average number of R12A31 BEBk
ordinary shares at 31 December IR E 1,793,173,500 1,805037,816
Effect of exercise of warrants RREE TR E - 18,953,853
Effect of Share Allotment Scheme (Note 28) % {7 fid 2 5+ &1/ 5 2 (F7E 28) - 22519,18
Effect of share option scheme (Note 28) BRE 2l 2 (15 28) 7,233 =
Weighted average number of ordinary 12831 BEmARE
shares (diluted) at 3| December THYE (8E) 1,793,180,733  1846,510,850
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

[l PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1l ¥ BERRE

Motor
vehicles

Plant and and other

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
BER RER
EE e HtRE st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR®TR

Cost: Yo7

At | January 2014 R2014F 1 A 1R 741418 10,117,657 202,054 11,061,129
Additions il 5748 25576 9,228 40,552
Transferred from construction in progress — {E & L1288 A\ 60,681 1,159,747 298 1,220,726
Disposals RE (109) (1634) (1932) (3675)
At 3| December 2014 M2014F 12431 A 807,738 11,301,346 209,648 12,318,732
At | January 2015 R20I5F1AIH 807,738 11,301,346 209,648 12,318,732
Additions 120 1,490 47810 14,172 63,472
Transferred from construction in progress ~ {E 2 L1288 A 64,894 887,196 1,204 953,294
Disposals BRE - (1,259) (7,051) (8,310)
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F12A31R 874,122 12,235,093 217,973 13,327,188

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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(LAAR™3IR)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) [l Y% BERSKE®E

Motor
vehicles

Plant and and other

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
BER RER
EE e HtRE st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR

Accumulated depreciation and Rl T ER
impairment losses: REES -

At | January 2014 R2014F 1A 1B (102,632)  (1,470811) (87,358)  (1,660,801)
Charge for the year AERITE (35133)  (616,171) (31281)  (682,585)
Reversal of impairment losses WEEXEE - 37,627 - 37,627
Written back on disposals REERED 26 500 1,089 1,615
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31 B (137739)  (2048855)  (I17,550)  (2,304,144)
At | January 2015 R20ISE 1 A1 B (137,739)  (2,048855)  (117,550)  (2,304,144)
Charge for the year AEHRITE (38613)  (685,926) (29,130) (753,669
Written back on disposals REERED - 214 4,693 4,907
At 3| December 2015 R20I15F 124318 (176,352)  (2,734,567)  (141,987) (3,052,906)
Net book value: HREFE

At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 B 697,770 9,500,526 75986 10,274,282
At 31 December 2014 R20145F 12 A31 A 669999 9252491 92098 10014588
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

BIIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(@

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's borrowings and bills payable
were secured by the Group's plant and machinery with net book value of

RMB2,351,237,000 (2014: RMB,722,532,000).

Certain of the Group's leased plant and machinery are considered as being
held under finance lease. Net book value of such plant and machinery was as

follows:

NE - BERRE @)

@

AEENE  BERRBIBET
B o

R2015F 128318 REFES
A R #2,351,237,0007T (2014 4 :
AR 1,722,532,000 7T ) 6 i &= A
BRERAEEERNETHETUA
RERZBERR -

REEAMNETHE kSRR
RUBBHETARE - ZEBE
RHESRNREFEZIIMT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETE

Net book value of plant and machinery
held under finance lease HEREFE

NBERETARANEE X

1,155,372 1,077,300

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply agreements with certain
customers for periods up to 30 years. Certain of the Group's buildings
are located on land leased from these customers. Accordingly, building
ownership certificate is not obtained in respect of such buildings. The net
book value of such buildings amounted to RMB315,668,000 at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB302,365,000).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

(d)

AEERETEPRI RARBMH
EiHE RRERANF - K&
BETERURAMELEFAA
Bt b o Bt - BB ERARR
BEEMARESE - R20I15F 128
3R LREERAFEAAR
#3156680007C(20145 : AR
302,365,000 7C) °
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

5I7)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

)

At 31 December 2015, the Group was in the process of applying for the
ownership certificate for certain buildings with an aggregate net book value
of RMB68,149,000 (2014: RMB154,013,000). The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy

and use of the above mentioned buildings.

During 2014, the previously recognised impairment losses of
RMB179,006,000 against the non-current assets by Zhangjiagang Yingde
Gases Co,, Ltd. (“Zhangjiagang Yingde") has been partially reversed by
RMB70,338,000 (including property, plant and equipment of RMB37,627,000
and construction in progress of RMB32,711,000). A subsidiary of the Group
with identical production process has been set up in 2014 and the Group
reassessed the recoverable amount of those impaired non-current assets of
Zhangjiagang Yingde and decided to reuse certain assets to the new project.
The recoverable amount of the assets was estimated based on their value in

use.

At 31 December 2015, impairment losses were recognised in respect of the

NE - BERRE @)

(e)

R20I15F 128318 - AEEIERE
NEFEMERENETEEMN
REFEETRARE 68,149,000
7L(20144 = A R % 154,013,000
L) AREEERR  A5ER
BEERBBUER REANA LA
FE -

RI14F - RATFEHRR A
RERBAEBRAIRRAER
BNFFHEERANRESRE
AR 179006000H * AR
#70338000 (B IEHME - K
EREBERANREEBARSE
37,627,0007C * MR EFERTIR2MHE
REREEEARK32711,000
TO)REE - REBAN-KERK
AREEARRNEERENNEL
AIR20I4FRK - REBEH T
BT RRBRECERRENIER
PEEZATHESE  WREHKS

PDEERZMBEPENA It
SEEZANESERERLFERE
(ELET

2015F 12831 B EHERERS

non-current assets of Zhangjiagang Yingde as follows: 57%"1 %#m@) BERRNREFEN
DK

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment E RS 40,458 40,458
Construction in progress HETIE 59,459 59,459
Intangible assets EBIVEE 8,751 8,751
108,668 108,668
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es to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

B5R)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(g)  Certain production facilities of the Group were occupied and controlled
by its on-site customer without the Group' s consent in December 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment being occupied is amounting to RMB548,947,000. The Group
is under the process of communicating with the on-site customer and the
related government authorities to resolve the dispute and believe that there

will not be any adverse material impact to the Group' s financial statements..

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

I 9% BEREEE)

(9 ARBAFEIDEEREERER
SEREMBER THARSHRAY
PlaBI S » R2015F 1243
B ®HEENDE BERRE
i BR )% (B 3 A R % 548,947,000
7o AREFERHERGHIATP R
BB THEETERARRZA
o YHREZAU4D T HERNK
BREEEATFIFE -

12 HEERIR

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE

At | January RIAIR 3,055,457 2,551,113
Additions 2m 910,874 1,692,359
Transferred to property, plant and equipment BAVE  BEKRE (953,294)  (1,220,726)
Reversal of impairment losses (Note 11(f)) REBRERE (M) - 32711
At 31 December R12A318 3,013,037 3,055,457

At 31 December 2014, certain equipment included in construction in progress
were held under finance lease, with net book value of RMB333,916,000. In 2015,
the Group has paid all lease payments and purchased the leased equipment at nil
consideration. Net book value of construction in progress held under finance lease

as at 31 December 2015 was nil.

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by the
Group's construction in progress with net book value of RMB93,833,000 (2014:
RMB381,206,000).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

R2014E 128318 ERIRHETHER
BHREANREREFARE  REFERA
R #3339160007C ° REBR20I5FE[ET
EBERERETATHERBE THERE
MEHRE - R2015F12A3I8 UBERE
FRABENERIREEFEAS -

R20I5SENA3B EEHFEAARK
93,833,000 7C(20144F A R # 381,206,000 )
NERTRERAEBERNE TERELE -
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARHFIT)

LEASE PREPAYMENTS I3
Lease prepayments comprise interests in leasehold land held for own use under

operating leases located in the mainland China and Hong Kong as follows:

HERNRE
HERNFERRLEEERTHIERS
AEDEARERESHE L1 -
25T

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL

Land use rights held under mid-term and PHERAEEE THAN
long-term leases TR

416,483 348,859

The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating lease

periods of 34-50 years.

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by
the Group's land use rights with the net book value of RMB67,711,000 (2014:
RMB104,430,000).

R
I
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T E R 34-50 F 2 HEMAE
BORB o

R20I5FNA3B EAFAEASA
R ®%67711,0007(2014F: A R &
104,430,000 7T) B L3 E R EE A K E
BEOETEREER -
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8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 EBREEE
Know-how Software Total
BHERM B4 Fo

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR%®TR

Cost: B
At | January 2014 201451 A1 A 76,007 3,852 79,859
Additions 0 - 136 136
At 3| December 2014 R2014512A31R 76,007 3988 79,995
At | January 2015 R2015F1 A1 8 76,007 3,988 79,995
Additions 20 - 910 910
At 31 December 2015 2015612 A31 A 76,007 4,898 80,905
Accumulated amortisation ZitBEAREER -

and impairment losses:
At | January 2014 R2014F 1A 1B (22,500) (845) (23,345)
Charge for the year REHE (4,401) (413) (4814)
At 31 December 2014 2014412 A31 A (26,901) (1,258) (28,159)
At | January 2015 R20I1551 418 (26,901) (1,258) (28,159)
Charge for the year REEH (4,401) (482) (4,883)
At 3| December 2015 R20I15F12A31R (31,302) (1,740) (33,042
Net book value: HREFE -
At 31 December 2015 R20I5F 128318 44,705 3,158 47,863
At 31 December 2014 2014412 A31 A 49,106 2,730 51,836

The amortisation charge for the year is included in "“Administrative expenses” in the

REFROBHBERAHNERE MG K
HmRPHIEERM]

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARHFIT)

I5 RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE 15 EUREHER
The gross investment and present value of receivables relating to future minimum BERAIRENREHEGZIAEA
lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease agreement or arrangement MEHENTH  BRRFEAENK
accounted for as finance lease are as follows: HENBREENERRIBREZS
mr
2015 2014
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease Gross lease Gross
payments  investment payments  Investment
REHE REEE

NHEE wEE (R5E BrE
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB0OOO  RMB00O
ARBTR AR®BTR ARETT ARETR

Within | year —ER 2,117 2,245 2,117 2,245
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEAR 1,899 2,245 1,898 2,245
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFR 4,056 5,730 4,603 6,734
After 5 years Fikis 4,683 10,674 5035 1,915

10,638 18,649 [1,536 20,894
Total &t 12,755 20,894 13,653 23,139
Less: total future interest income o RRF S A LR (8,139) (9,486)
Present value of lease receivables MHERWFIERE 12,755 13,653
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

[6 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. All the subsidiaries are unlisted

companies and the class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

l6 HHELRAMNER

ATNIIRESR

SHARELERE &

M

ESREAREZVENNBAR K

FRERH - FBNELR

AP/ LET

AR ARBRAS LB -

Place of Ownership
incorporation/ interest held by
establishment Issued and paid FRERERLA
Name of company and business up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
B B#T F2F WERR
NAER RUREEHE MBREZR oL BE IEXH
Yingde Gases BVI USD14,700 100% - Investment holding
Investment Limited (“Yingde BVI")
BRRBRABRAR(AR RBRIES 14700 7T RERR
(RERLES)])
Yingde Gases (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD 154,234,275 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
BRAR(FB)ERAA BB 154,234,275 B 7L RARR
Yingde Investment (Shanghai) Co, Ltd* PRC USD 148,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
AREA(LB)BRAF* G 148,000,000 X 7T RARR
Anyang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. * PRC USD62,500,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
BRABER G 62,500,000 T FERHEIRRAR
Baotou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. * PRC RMB520,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
BRARREARA G AR 52000000070 FERBEIRRAR
Hancheng Yingda Gases Co., Ltd. * PRC USD26,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
BHAEREERAT R 26,400,000 T TERBEIRRR
Hanzhong Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. * PRC USD33,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
ERERRBERAF HE 33,000000% 7 TERBEIRRAR

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015
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B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFITR)

[6 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Issued and paid

le HHEDRER @)

Ownership

interest held by

PR Rl

Name of company and business up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
AR,/ BRT ARF MWERAF
NEAEH RUEEL MBRER R BE IEXHK
Hebei Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB282,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
AL ARREERAF G AR 282,000,000 7T HERHEIRRARE
Huai'an Yingda Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB64,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
EZRERBEERAF i AR 64,000,000 T FERHEIRRAR
Hunan Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB306,338,878 = 100%  Production and sales
("Hunan Yingde")* of industrial gases
AEARREERAR G AR¥ 306338878 7T FERBEIRRAR
(TAmaE)*
Laiwu Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. * PRC USD10,049,964 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
BRABERDA* e 10,049,964 £ 7T FERHEIRRAR
Rizhao Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB419,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
ARARRESRAR P AR 419,400,000 70 FERBEIRRAR
Shaanxi Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
REREREBERDA = FE AR 11000000070 TERBEIRRAR
Tianjin Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. #* PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
REBERRERRAF FE AR 60,000,0007C FERHETERAR
BEER R 2 F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 6 HHEAQBHES(E)

Place of Ownership

incorporation/ interest held by

establishment Issued and paid FERESLA
Name of company and business up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activity

AR,/ BRT ARF MWERAF
NEAEH RUEEL MBRER R BE IEXHK
Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co,, Ltd. * PRC USD60,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales

of industrial gases
RREBRRREARAR® T 60,000,000 7T EERHEIRAR
Zhuhai Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB260,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
of industrial gases
KEREBARBRAR i AR 260,000,000 70 FERHEIRRAR
Karamay Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. * PRC USD33,200,000 = 100%  Under construction
RAEKRRREBERAR P E 332000007 jid=3
Shijiazhuang Yingding Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC USD42,369,741 - 100%  Under construction
AFHBRAERRAE e 42,369,741 X HE
& These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the * AR AKBRE A RLEMBEEE
law of the People’s Republic of China. SMEINEBELE -

**  These companies were registered as sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises AT AKRBRTEARLMEER

under the law of the People’s Republic of China.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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(AARBFITR)

16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 6 HHEABHES(E)
The following table lists out the information relating to the subsidiaries of the TRINRTAEEFEIFERREES
Group which have non-controlling interests (NCI). The summarised financial BB ARMEEER - BEEERIR
information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company SZARNSBEERMmT o
elimination.
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Current assets MEBE 349,797 128,481

Non-current assets ERBDEE 386,096 433,14

Current liabilities mBERE (188,029) (142,776)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (94,375) (32,250)
Net assets BEFE 453,489 386,596
Carrying amount of NC| FERRRERRE S 170,928 107,891

Revenue LN 100,585 13334

(Loss)/profit for the year RE(E518) /A (15,114) 30,800
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEGERGER (15,114) 30,800
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI PEEEIFERR RS (BE),/FIH (3,236) 8,257
Dividend paid to NCI XA SRR AR R AR B -

Cash inflows from operating activities REFHHREMA 17,024 11,640

Cash outflows from investing activities REEERERM (271,900) (531)
Cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities RETBRLSTA/(RL) 243,680 (68/442)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

17

BIIR)

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

17 REEQTNESR

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETRT ARET

Share of net assets EIFEE 518,671 483,731

The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group as at 3|

December 2015, all of which are unlisted incorporated enterprises and established

R20I5F 12831 B » REEHZ QA
HAERBRUMELTEE  #FE2

in the PRC: FIIAT -
Place of Particulars of
Name of incorporation issued and paid The Group’s  Principal
associate and operation up capital effective interest  activity
N B 3L ERTNHZ BN
#8 REBKmE BAER AYER TEXK
RMB’000
AR
Anyang Zhongying Fertilizer PRC 490,000 39%  Production and sales
Co,, Ltd. (“Anyang Zhongying") of chemical products
ZHERBEEARAR(I2GHR]) LERHECTER
Gansu Hongsheng New Energy PRC 666,670 45%  Under construction
Co,, Ltd. (“Gansu Hongsheng") of chemical plant
HREAMERAERAR(HERA]) HE ERICIRK
China National Air Separation PRC 50,000 30%  Manufacturing and sales
Plant Co,, Ltd. of air separation equipment
PEENRBEER AR P E ENRENSENHE

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015
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N W=\
(LAAR™3IR)

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 REEATNESR @)
The summarised financial information of Gansu Hongsheng, the Group's material BEERZTENASEEERE AT
associate, which is accounted for using the equity method, is as follows: HBRZANTBKESHMRNT :

Gansu Hongsheng

HRESR
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARETRL

Gross amounts of the associate’s - INGIECE

Current assets MENEE 663,370 661813

Non-current assets ERBDEE 7,529 1,268

Current liabilities nEaE ©) (724)
Equity e 670,890 672,357
Revenue WA - =
(Loss)/profit for the year RE(E18) /FH (1,467) 2985
Total comprehensive income for the year AEGFE W R AR (1,467) 2,985
Dividend received from the associate REERRIRGERE - -
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the associate RASERBE N ENERRBD

Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BERRIEEFRAR 670,890 672,357
Group's effective interest AEEB MR 45% 45%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEELBERTEEFR 301,901 302,561

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements & FEI AR R P ER A £ 58 301,901 302,561
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

B3I
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 HREEQBHES(H)
The summarised financial information, in aggregate of individually immaterial ERITE R E N R

associates is as follows:

SEERE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial AR~ E RS D AN A G
associates in the consolidated financial statements RARFEREBATE 216,770 181,170
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share AEERBE AN ERR
of those associates'
Profit/(loss) for the year AEFE/ (B7) 14,541 (11463)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEHFEW R 14,541 (11,463)
INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 18 RABATMEL
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Share of net assets EiFEEE 263,694 268,561

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(I HETI= )
(LAAR™3IR)

18 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18 RAEEQTHES(E)
Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, which is accounted for using AEEREGERRNESRERATA
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: EHMERE  FBEENNOT

Place of Particulars of
Name of incorporation issued and paid The Group's
joint ventures and operation up capital effective interest  Principal activity
RELT 243 ERTAMRE F5E
L REKHE BAHE BYEE TEER
Shandong Bositeng Chunye Co, Ltd. PRC USD47,025,000 40%  Under construction of
chemical plant
WRBHEERERAF] P E 47,025,000 T ERICTH
Cangzhou Xuyang Chemical PRC USD 107,985,000 36%  Under construction of
Co, Ltd. (“Cangzhou Xuyang") chemical plant
RINBRILTERAR(AMNBER]) P 107,985,000 % 70 ERICIR
Jiujiang Sinopec Yingde Gases PRC RMB 142,857,000 35%  Under construction of industrial
Co, Ltd. ("fiujiang Yingde") gases production plant
NIABRREERAR FE ARH 142,857,000 70 ERIXRELER
(TIgeEl)

The summarised financial information, in aggregate of individually immaterial joint

ventures is as follows:

ERITERRERRIHMBESEERE -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial BRI FERRERARNE AR EK
joint ventures in the consolidated financial statements FERASREESR 263,694 268,561
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share AEBEREE AR ERR
of those joint ventures'
Loss for the year AEER (1,087 (1,062)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFGFE R (1,087) (1,062)
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(RARBIIR)

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HiFRHEE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL

Prepayment for property, plant and equipment MmE - BERREM
and land use right T ERENERNR
— an associate —HEAF 52,007 52,007
— third parties -%£=5 690,810 760,170
Value-added tax recoverable AR E R 153,701 191,184
Other investment in equity securities HtRAEFRE 174,727 |74,727
Long-term deferred expenses ROGEER 10,541 10908
1,081,786 1,188,996
20 INVENTORIES 20 EFE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: AHBBRRARPNFEERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETE
Raw materials and consumables RT# RIEESFm 69,683 61,850
Finished goods M m 32,739 35,908
102,422 97,758
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the amount of inventories recognised BEWSENAIBLEFE  FEF
as an expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ERNEGHERE iR e R iR
other comprehensive income is RMB5,392,816,000 (2014: RMB5,298,879,000). RERANEERARYS53928160007T

(20144 : AR#5298:879,0007T)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWRERFRR E i fE W I8
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables PR
— ajoint venture —REAT 55,952 132,799
— an associate - UNG 261,821 277,098
— third parties -%=5 1,601,892 1,282,601
Bills receivable BRERE 685,139 415932
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RERER (376,809) (233232)
2,227,995 1,875,198
Deposits and other receivables e KA ERTIR
— an associate . -UNG 25,000 -
— third parties =Vl 429,869 969,407
454,869 969,407
2,682,864 2,844,605
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one R U B 5 % L e PR M R IR TR ET R — 5
year. AmLgE -
Credit terms may be granted to customers, depending on the credit assessment EEESREY @E'Jg)gﬁﬁflﬁﬂ"ﬂggﬁ
carried out by the management on an individual basis. i BRTHERNEE
At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's trade receivables with total carrying R2ISE12A3IB R&EBREEE
amount of RMB67,132,000 (2014: RMB35,567,000) were pledged to secure the B AR®67132000m(2014F : AR
Group's borrowing amounted to RMB469,087,000 (2014: RMB275,229,000). #35,567,0007C ) B BR R E AR5 B

AR #469,087,0007L(2014%F : AR
275,229,000 70 ) K& FR{EIEH
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 FEWERF R H v e IE ()
()  Ageing analysis @ BRI
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables and bills JEUEE TR R E M EW BB IEIAT
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the ageing analysis as of FEUTBR UM FE W 245 (3B R AR E
the year end date: ) REERRRA 250
T

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTR

Neither past due nor impaired FARBE A FERE 1,313,194 1,038,468

Less than | month past due BEANEA—E A 134,947 152,162

| to 3 months past due BE—Z={EA 215,131 213,558

3 to 6 months past due BE=F~EA 259,033 194,747

6 to 12 months past due aEAET A 226,809 256,263

12 to 24 months past due BT _E_tTH@EA 78,881 20,000

Amounts past due jakiliEal 914,801 836,730

2,227,995 1,875,198
The credit terms for trade receivables are generally 30 to 45 days. The bills JEWEEREZEEH — 8 B30245
receivable are normally due within 180 days from the date of issuing. Further HeBWZEE—%EFRZHEI80
details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 33(b). ARNEIE - "EBEZERRZEH

FARTEE 33(b) °

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group s satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as

21

JE L R B L 4t B KRR (40)

(b)

FE R TR K B L R AR AL (B
FEIER 3R S B R B O LB S R AT
ANEER - RIFAEERABKE R
BRAREMERE  ERERT R
BEEREERREKERERREK
ZE (2B 2000) °

REEFAFRENEHZIIMT

follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETR
At | January RIAIE 233,232 60,839
Impairment loss recognised HRRREBR 151,687 186,069
Write-back of impairment loss REEREED (8,110) (10,585)
Uncollectible amounts written off RAJ U o) 5 FEEE 5 - (3.091)
At 31 December mI12A31H 376,809 233232

At 31 December 2015, the Group's trade debtors of RMBI, 102,877,000
(2014: RMB594,461,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficutties and management assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB143,577,000 (2014: RMB75,484,000) were recognised during
the year.

Trade and bills receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to

a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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MELEF TREIGHEDS
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)  Impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)
Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable,

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
At 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits were pledged to secure credit and

loan facilities granted to the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21

22

23

L e e B L 4t B UK 0B (40)

(b) FEMRRRERREARE(R)
ELBHERMFERENE KR
RRERRES RS UEARER
REFMBACRNBLIER - BRI
NEEER  EEERRMNEREE
ETFEERE(C ARBHRERS
REHZRRE - FE L EHRE
RGO ERER

BIERFRITER
R2I15ENA3NA EFRITERE
AASENERAZEREREEMERT
AT ©

RERRESEY
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETR

Cash at bank and in hand BITEFNES

678,450 606,359

The Group's cash and bank balances in the PRC included RMB485,185,000 at 3|
December 2015 (2014: RMB314,307,000). RMB is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction

imposed by the PRC government.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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24 BORROWINGS 24 fER
(a)  The borrowings comprise: @) BRERE:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETRL
Short-term borrowings FEHE T 709,676 205,000
Current portion of long-term borrowings REBERNEERE D 893,662 1,516,138
1,603,338 1,721,138
Non-current portion of long-term borrowings RBERORADH 8,060,162 7,379,592
9,663,500 9,100,730

The interest rates per annum of borrowings were: ERHNEFNRE :
2015 2014
Short-term loans RHER 1.93%-6.9% 5.9%-69%
Long-term loans REEHR LIBOR+2.75%-5%,  LIBOR+2.75%-6.0%,
HIBOR+3.2% HIBOR+3.2%

or 4.75%-6.88% or 6.15%7.68%
GEESHEES RBRITRE

FERZE REM=

+2.75%-5.0%, +2.75%-6.0%,

BRRITAE BARTAE

FERZE REM=

+3.2% 3 +3.2%

4.75%-6.88% 6.15%-7.68%

Medium-term notes g 5.5% 5.5%

Senior notes BARE 7.25%08.125% 7.25%(8.125%

Convertible notes and warrants A BRES KRR ER N/A 1529%

TEA

Corporate bonds RAfER 5.48% N/A

NEH
Interest rates comprise fixed rates, floating rates based on the London MEBEREENE - EipHRITH
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") and the Hong Kong Interbank Offered ¥meRE(RARTRERS
Rate ("HIBOR”). FEDREBRITRAETSHE
([BERRTRAEFEFNE]) AR

R K o
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24 BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)  The borrowings were repayable as follows:

f REEHRMOT

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR

On demand (Note) BREREE (M ET)
Within | year —FR

After | year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFEA
After 5 years Fikis

85,066 188,802
1,518,272 1,532,336
1,312,731 1,015,545
6,747,431 6,274,047

- 90,000

9,663,500 9,100,730

Note: Certain borrowings of the Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down borrowing balances would become payable
on demand. As at 31 December 2015, none of the covenants relating to

borrowings had been breached.

The amount of repayable on demand as at 3| December is the amount
entitled to be repaid on demand as requested by bank in accordance with

terms of the loan contracts.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fBR(E)
(c)  The borrowings were secured as follows: (c) BRERERLT :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Bank loans TITER
— secured —BHEF 897,962 1,588,139
~ unsecured — B 2,560,516 2,258,253
Other loans (Note (e)) HAER (o)
— secured — B 100,000 =
~ unsecured — B 91,500 148,500
Medium-term notes RHER
— unsecured — A 877,519 877,470
Senior notes (Note (f)) BERE (FE ()
— unsecured — AR 4,181,112 4,086,372
Convertible notes and warrants (Note (g)) ABREFMBRES (& ()
~ unsecured — B 178 141,996
Corporate bonds (Note (h)) NalfEs (FE (h)
— unsecured — AR 954,713 =
9,663,500 9,100,730

(d)  The carrying value of assets secured for borrowings were as follows: (d REREFENEEREEENT
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREBTR

Property, plant and equipment mE - BERRE 2,351,237 1,722,532
Construction in progress TR 93,833 381,206

Lease prepayments MEBMRIE 67,711 104,430

Trade and other receivables JFE WO B 0 LA B R0 67,132 35567
2,579,913 2,243,735
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BORROWINGS (continued)

()

Other loans:

In 2015, Anging Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. (“Anging Yingde"), a subsidiary
of the Group, borrowed entrust loan of RMB100,000,000 from its non-
controlling shareholder at interest of 6.04% per annum, and will be due in
2016. As at 31 December 2015, the borrowing was secured by a charge
over the Group's shares of Anging Yingde.

In 2013, Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co., Ltd. ("Zhangjiagang Yingding"),
a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed loan of RMB200,000,000 from a third
party trust company at interest of 5.75% per annum, and will be due in 2018.

Senior notes:

Yingde BVI issued senior notes with amount of USD425,000,000 in 2013
(the “Senior Notes I") and USD250,000,000 in 2014 (the “Senior Notes II”,
together the “Senior Notes"), respectively.

The Senior Notes | bear interest at 8.125% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears, and will be due in 2018. USD 150,000,000 would be used
for capital expenditure and general corporate purposes and the remaining

balance to refinance certain existing indebtedness.

The Senior Notes Il bear interest at 7.25% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears, and will be due in 2020. USD 100,000,000 would be
used for capital expenditure, USD 100,000,000 to refinance certain existing
indebtedness and the remaining balance for working capital and general

corporate purposes.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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BORROWINGS (continued)

(®

Senior notes: (continued)

In 2015, the Group repurchased the Senior Notes | of USD4,000,000
(approximately RMB25,310,000) and the Senior Notes Il of USD22,000,000
(approximately RMB137,032,000) at an aggregate consideration of
USD?22,889,000 (approximately RMB142,774,000), and the gain of

RMB19,568,000 on repurchase was recognised in other income.

As at 31 December 2015, the Senior Notes | and Senior Notes Il were
respectively guaranteed by the Company and 5 subsidiaries, and the
Company and 9 subsidiaries of the Company registered in Hong Kong and
the BVI. The guarantee will be released upon the full and final payments of

the Senior Notes respectively.

The Senior Notes are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
limitations on indebtedness and certain transactions of the Group, as are
commonly found in issue of corporate bonds. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 December 2015, none of the

covenants relating to the Senior Notes had been breached.
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(f

BEEE : (&)
AEER 2015 F A5 22,889,000
EL(HA AR 142,7740007T)
i 4 /8 B BE 7 4,000,000 % JT(49
AAR%2531000070) BEEEE
18222,000000% (& A R &
137,032,000 7C ) B £ R 121l - 18
Yok A R 19,568,000 7T A E b Uk
AR o
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BORROWINGS (continued)

(®

Convertible notes and warrants:

On 24 November 2013, the Company and China Development Bank
International Investment Ltd. (“CDB International”) entered into an
investment agreement whereby the Company agreed to issue and
CDB International agreed to subscribe for (i) the principal amount of
USD25,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB153,312,500) 8% coupon
convertible notes, which could convert to approximately 22,024,148 shares,
due 2015; and (ii) at nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable
to purchase ordinary shares of USD0.00000! each in the capital of the
Company, due 2016. The above convertible notes and warrants were issued
on 2 December 201 3.

As at 3| December 2015, the convertible notes were mature and no share

was converted.

Corporate bonds:
On I3 October 2015, Hunan Yingde issued corporate bonds with amount
of RMB980,000,000 in the PRC being traded on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange.

The corporate bonds bear interest at 5.48% per annum, payable annually
in arrears and will be due in 2020 with issuer’s option to adjust the nominal
interest rate and the bondholders’ right to request the issuer to redeem
the corporate bonds at the end of the third interest accruing year. The
proceeds would be used to supplement working capital, repay existing bank

borrowings and invest in the construction of projects.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ERERAREAMESTE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Within | month —f@AR 142,806 350,176
Over | month but within 3 months BH—ZE=EHA 277,022 174,666
Over 3 months but within 6 months BME=Z A 189,758 52,991
Over 6 months but within 12 months BEAET A LT 32,636
Total trade and bills payable FERT BR AR B e N B BT 610,697 610,469
Payable for property, plant and equipment mE - BERRBREMNK

— third parties —£=7 965,377 1,038,637

— a non-controlling shareholder — IR R 10,359 10,565
Amount due to an associate (Note (ii)) JE AP BB = B R IE (R (i) 270,000 270,000
Amount due to a joint venture (Note (ii)) B & & R RIFIE (M EE (i) 93,528 93,528
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder (Note (i)~ # FEFRRR % R 6 A SR8 (BT EE (iih)) 4,394 3,762
Accrued expenses and other payables RRRER KA EMNKE 331,153 394,245
Derivative financial instruments fTHEemMIA - 1,075

2,285,508 2,422,281

Notes: 5t -

(i) All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or (i) P FEAT R R % B A SRR TR A 1
repayable on demand. R—ENIHREREE -

(i) The amounts due to an associate and a joint venture are unsecured, interest free and (i EN—EEELRR—FEEEARN
have no fixed term of repayable. ERAEER R ERERTENS

(ify  The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured, bearing interest at (i) RN —REIEERRRTIRAEER
8.32% per annum and repayable from 2016 to 2019. F8.832% ' R2016FZE2019F(EE ©
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26  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 26 BMEHESE
At 31 December 2015, the Group had obligations under finance lease repayable as R20ISF12A318 AREHERF
follows: EHERRE25IMT
2015 2014
Present Present

value of the Total  value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

BEEE BEEE SEHE SEEE
AXRE RERE [(HEE (REEER
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARBTT AR®MTR ARETT ARETET

Within | year —FR 190,241 196,059 324,110 333,657
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFER 179,513 195,959 206,422 225,690
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFR 33282 40,377 131,982 158,013
After 5 years hFE 12,060 25,983 12,890 28718

224,855 262,319 351294 412,421

Total et 415,096 458,378 675,404 746,078

Less: total future interest income W RRF B YA B (43,282) (70,674)

Present value of lease obligations MERERE 415,096 675404
162 Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

27 HitRHEE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TRL

Advance from a non-controlling shareholder HIEERRREAK 11,288 11,288
Deferred revenue R s 42,088 38911
Others Hf - 1,000
53,376 51,199

SHARE SCHEMES

@

Share option scheme

On 16 October 2014, the Company granted in aggregate 1,225,000 share
options to certain directors, subject to their acceptance, for the subscription
of 1,225,000 ordinary shares under the Company's share option scheme
adopted on 12 September 2009. The validity period of the share options
is from 16 October 2014 to |5 October 2019 and the exercise price is
HKD6.62.

On 20 November 2015, the Company additionally granted in aggregate
2,607,500 share options to certain directors, subject to their acceptance, for
the subscription of 2,607,500 ordinary shares under the Company's share
option scheme adopted on 12 September 2009. The validity period of the
share options is from 20 November 2015 to |9 November 2020 and the
exercise price is HKD3.35.

No minimum period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised. No share options were exercised during the year ended 3|

December 2015.

The fair value of the share option granted to the directors is measured at
grant date using the binomial option pricing model, taking into account the

terms and conditions upon which the shares were granted.
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SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme

Pursuant to the Company's board resolution dated 8 July 2013 (“Adoption
Date"), the Company adopted a share allotment scheme (‘“Share Allotment
Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain employees and to give
incentives for them to work with commitment towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the shareholders, and to
attract high caliber personnel for further development of the Group. On the
same date, the Company entered into a trust deed with KCS Trust Limited
(“Trustee") for the Share Allotment Scheme.

In October 2013, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Share Allotment Scheme, the Company lent loans of HKD 158,878,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB125,974,000) and allotted 22,600,000
shares to the Trustee at an issue price of HKD7.03 per share (represents
a discount of approximately 5% to the average closing price of the share
for the last 30 trading days prior to the determination of issue price). The
Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled
the subscription amount out of the loans from the Company accordingly.
The shares allotted represent approximately 1.24% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately upon the completion of the
allotment. The Trustee will hold the shares allotted in trust for those
selected employees of mid-and-senior-level management of the Company

(“Participating Employees”) until such shares allotted are vested.

During 2014, two Participating Employees resigned from the Group, and
their entitled allotted shares (200,000 shares in aggregate) were sold to the

open market at market price.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)
At | January 2015, a total of 22,400,000 allotted shares were held by the
Trustee for the purpose of satisfying the shares allotted to the existing

Participating Employees pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme.

In order to allot shares at a lower price to the exiting Participating
Employees to appreciate their long services to the Company as well as
to offer an opportunity for some of the Company's new employees to
participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, pursuant to the Company's
board resolution dated |3 April 2015, the board approved to issue and
allot up to 36,000,000 new shares to replace the above allotment made
in 2013. The Company lent loans of HKD201,240,000 (approximately
RMB159,402,000) and allotted 36,000,000 new shares to the Trustee at an
issue price of HKD5.59 per share (represents a discount of approximately
[.9% to the average closing price of the share for the last 30 trading days
prior to the determination of the number of shares to be allotted) on 28
April 2015. The Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust
and settled the subscription amount out of the loans from the Company

accordingly.
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(b)

FR 47 B B 5t 8 ()

2015 1 A1 B » A 22,400,000
BRI B XFEARR - AR IRE
ROEEFERERD TRELHE
ES -

BRBRAELHESUREERES
R ABRHERBRBEARDA
WARKRARBAHFEERHRBE
BROEEEANEE  BEAD
AIEZEERI5F4A 138 2R
BER EEQCHERTRER
5% % 36,000,000 % 31 A% 19 LA BR (X
013F AL % o KA R20I5F
4RBHMETIABHERER
201,240,000 B L) E R (A EE R
AR 159,402,0007T) + WIZEEAT
BEREERNDSSIBIT(RKRE
HE R D ARE B BA0ER S
ARG THWKHE 1 9%k3TE) i
336,000,000 R#T & 1 - XFEAR
REARFRBTRERY 1
BRANANEREERESSE -
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SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)

Subsequently, pursuant to the Company’s board resolution dated 7
December 2015, the board approved to issue and allot up to 39,000,000
new shares to replace the allotment made in April 2015. The Company lent
loans of HKD 129,480,000 (approximately RMB106,857,000) and allotted
39,000,000 new shares to the Trustee at an issue price of HKD3.32 per
share (represents a discount of approximately 0.8% to the average closing
price of the share for the last 30 trading days prior to the determination
of the number of shares to be allotted) on 28 December 2015. The
Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled the

subscription amount out of the loans from the Company accordingly.

At 3| December 2015, a total of 39,000,000 allotted shares were held by
the Trustee for the purpose of satisfying the shares allotted to the existing

Participating Employees pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

28 R{EE ()

(b)

FR 43 B 8 5t 81 ()

BEfe - REARAEZTER2I5
FNRATAZRER EFEE
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28

SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)

The shares allotted held by the Trustee shall be fully vested by the
Participating Employees on |6 September 2023 provided that the
Participating Employees remain at all times after the date of grant till vesting
date an employee and subject to the full repayment of the outstanding loan

amounts relating to the relevant shares allotted.

The Share Allotment Scheme shall terminate on the thirteenth anniversary

date of the Adoption Date.

The Company accounts for the fair value of the shares allotted as an
expense over the period from the allotment date to 16 September 2023
with a corresponding increase in equity. The shares allotted are treated as
treasury shares and no loan receivable from the Trustee is recognised until

vesting of the Share Allotment Scheme.

()  The number of shares allotted are as follows:

28 R4 EE ()

(b)

FR 47 B B 5t 8 ()
RFEATA BB G ER 2023
FORI6AEERBN2HES -
AiRR2EEENKLAERER
—ESREE  BEEEBRER
DEZBERBRE o

B EETERNERBEE =
BF 2 BRI -

ARRHEERNNARBEER
BRZE2FIAI6HBHEFA
BA - WBEENER - ERGE
LEEGEN - RERNDIERETR
RERE BETBRETXTEAZE

e
A °

() EREROBEWDT :

2015 2014
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FNE 22,400,000 22,600,000
Issued during the year RERIT 75,000,000 —
Forfeited/cancelled during the year AFERELL/EH (58,400,000) (200,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year EREFE 39,000,000 22,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARATHE - -

Bl
I
b
g
g
=
=i
P
al

£ ot

167




168

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

28 SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)

(ii)

Fair value of shares allotted

The fair value of services received in return for shares allotted is
measured by reference to the fair value of shares allotted. The
estimate of the fair value of the shares allotted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model. The contractual life of the Share
Allotment Scheme is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial option pricing

model.

28 R{EE ()

(b)

R E Bt 8 () (i)
ERRANIAEE
NEEBRNESRENAA
BE 2ZRERMHOAA
BEETHE - REBRHH
AREERB-BEADET
BEAGE - RIDEEE
A AHRERZEAN—
BaAE BHEATEN
BRATEBERN _EAHRETE
fER -

Fair value of shares B a0 Y
allotted and assumptions AREERRBRR 2015 2014
Fair value at measurement date AR ARBE RMBARHK 1.95 [.51
Share price at measurement date il B I AR (B RMBA KK 342 430
Exercise price 1THE(E RMBA R 2.74 6.52
Volatility (expressed as weighted KEE (LAZIER
average volatility used in the HEEERAT
modelling under binomial option RS Eh R
pricing model) =) 39.13% 35.75%
Option life (expressed as weighted average  HIEEMR (MAZI8
life used in the modelling under NEEEER
binomial option pricing model) TOETEER
RR) YearfF 8 9
Risk-free interest rate (based on mREBAE (ER
Exchange Fund Notes) HEESER) 1.64% 1.79%

The volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on
the weighted average remaining life of the Share Allotment Scheme),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.
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28 SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)  Share allotment scheme (continued)

28 REtE (|
(b) RDEBE(E)

(i) Fair value of shares allotted (continued) (i) BERONIAEEGE)
Shares allotted were granted under a service condition. This BB AR (0 R X — T AR 7
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair IREEFIPR » Z IR TR TG &
value measurement of the services received. There were no market HHTERBH AL BER
conditions associated with the Share Allotment Scheme. WARFIAEZE - BipBLEE

B3 EAE IG5 A
29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 RA
2015 2014
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ko# A ¢ RiH&E x|
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARBTT
Authorised: FE
Ordinary shares of USDO.00000) each SIRE(E 0000001 ETHEBR 50,000,000,000 50000000000
Issued and fully paid BETNSR 1,793,173,500 12 1793,173500 12
Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled BEERLH - - 4161500 -
Shares issued and replaced under Share R R %A R
Allotment Scheme (Note 28(5) BRERIRA (it 28(0)) 58,400,000 - - -
Shares issued under Share Allotment Scheme R LR 2R B R D
(Note 28(b)) (PEFE28(b)) 39,000,000 - 22400000 -
1,890,573,500 2 1819735000 12
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RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

30 RBERRE

(a)  Movements in components of equity () HRARDIZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REB S RS SEK D BEA
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated MERNFAGKRE 2HES G
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BERT o AATEEZAKZTD
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the NEGMERNEHZE2 0
year are set out below: N
Share Share Other  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
k&  RoEE EtRE  RHER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARE®TR ARET:R
At | January 2014 R2014F1A18 12 2983818 1,829 (949351) 2,036,308
Total loss for the year KEFHEARE = - - (21,027) (21,027)
Dividends approved in respect of the BBLEERD
previous year BRRE - - - (329297)  (329297)
Effect on Share Allotment Scheme BiAREENT 2 = = 7490 - 7490
Purchase of own shares i EIE = (64010) = = (64,010)
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A318 12 2919808 9319 (1299675 1629464
At | January 2015 R2015F1 A8 2 2919808 9319 (1,299675) 1,629,464
Total loss for the year TEBRER - - - (105255)  (105,255)
Dividends approved in respect of BHLEEMESRKRE
the previous year - - - (369,867) (369,867)
Interim dividends approved in respect BRAFEH B
of the current interim period BEERRS - - - (111,094 (111,094)
Effect on share schemes Kinstalge - - 17,325 - 17,325
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A318 2 2919808 26,644 (1,885891) 1,060,573

Details of movements of the Company's share capital are set out in Note

29.

Annual Report 2015
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30 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b)  Dividends
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable
to the year:

30 RERRE (&)
b)) BE
() ZAEEFATARARRAR
=
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTR

Interim dividend declared and paid of

BEREREBIRA R 0.06 TH)

RMBO.06 per ordinary share (2014 nil) FERE(20145F - F) 111,094 -
Final dividend proposed after the end of the ¥ & iR &R ZE D IR SR B
reporting period of RMBO.14 ARE0.1470(2014% : AR%0207T)
(2014: RMB0.20) per ordinary share HARHIRE 264,680 363,947
375,774 363,947

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
date has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year:

REHRR TR D RA K
B RRN & ARER A
G-

(i) RAFAERELZA TR

ARBRR EFRARE -
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TT

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of RMB0.20 (2014: RMBO. | 8)

per ordinary share

REFRIERE LN LEFE
RERE - BRETER
AREE0207T(20145 © AREE0.187T)

369,867 329,297
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RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

©

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary courses of business.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, appropriations to the statutory reserve were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC. The statutory reserve can
be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or increasing capital of the

subsidiaries and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly included the difference between the carrying value of
non-controlling interest previously acquired and the consideration paid, the
amount recognised within equity in respect of conversion of loan in prior

years, and the fair value effect recognised for share schemes.

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was RMB1,060,56 1,000
(2014: RMBI,629,452,000).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(®

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder retumns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and obligations
under finance leases) plus accrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2014, was
to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital at reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raised new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debt.
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30 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(®

Capital management (continued)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group at 31 December 2015

and 2014 was as follows:

30

RERRE (&)

@ EXEE(E)
R2I15ER2014F 12831 BEASE
BAREFABEEALENT

2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
MiE  AR®TRT ARETE

Current liabilities: mBEE
Borrowings a3 24 1,603,338 1,721,138
Amount due to an associate JEIHBEE AR E 25 270,000 270,000
Amount due to a joint venture eI & & D RIFIE 25 93,528 93,528
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder #£JEFE A% % 5 fa A 5K 25 4,394 3,762
Obligations under finance leases MEHERRE 26 190,241 324,110
2,161,501 2,412,538
Non-current liabilities: FRBERE
Borrowings a3 24 8,060,162 7,379,592
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder #t JE¥2 % A% &R f& A 5K 27 11,288 11,288
Obligations under finance leases BHEMERR 26 224,855 351,294
Total debt ER B 10,457,806  10,154712
Add: proposed dividends m: EERS 30(b) 264,680 363947
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERREEFEY 23 (678,450) (606,359)
Adjusted net debt RABRERFE 10,044,036 9.912,300
Total equity BEnasE 6,878,592 6,743,523
Less: proposed dividends B EERE (264,680) (363,947)
Adjusted capital RRRER 6613912 6,379,576
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RRAEFARERLE 152% 155%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BEARBBAIRE
(@)  Key management personnel remuneration () EBREEASHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEBBERETEASTH  EE
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain s BTN FARREZESH
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: FEREWNFIREN SN TET
BRFMALTHTIE O
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR AR®TE

Short-term employee benefits B A 11,946 12,555
Post-employment benefits gy 93 26
Expenses of share schemes DR E 1,331 557
13,370 13,138
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(b)). EERET Al 8 TR |(2 B
T 6(b))
(b) Transactions with associates, joint ventures and non-controlling (b) HEAKENEELT  GEQAR
shareholders of the Group EERBRENRS
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had the following HZEWISENAINBILEE K
transactions with associates, joint ventures and non-controlling shareholders: EEAMTEEENT « 5% AT
RIFERBEROZ S -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARTFR AR®TE

Advance to associates (net) BERRBAFEBECER) 25,000 5814
Sales to an associate HBERRINEE (316,321) (264,695)
Sales to joint ventures HEERAIMEE (74,798) (92,543)
Purchases from a non-controlling shareholder e TR AR R AR AR 2,011 19,104
Interest expenses related to advance from E S EXEYN O]

a non-controlling shareholder MFEER (1,252) (1,252)
Loan received from a non-controlling shareholder £ FEE AR A% 3 & A B (100,000) -
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with associates, joint ventures and non-controlling
shareholders of the Group (continued)
As at 31 December 2015, amounts due from/(to) associates, joint ventures

and non-controlling shareholders:

EXBMARS (&)

(b)

SRAEEHBEAT -

RENAR

FERBRRORS (H)

R20I15F 12 /31 B

W

HBERE  AERARFEER
B -
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARBTRT AR%TT
Trade and other receivables JFE W B e Lt B WK TE
Trade receivables from a joint venture NG & R Al YRR 21 55,952 132,799
Trade receivables from an associate PABEE A A 2 PR X 21 261,821 277,098
Amount due from an associate FENRH & R RIFRIA 21 25,000 =
Other non-current assets HithIEmE & E
Prepayment for property, plant BNBERRANE  BE
and equipment to an associate RETE 19 52,007 52,007
Borrowings &
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder ~ FFEFE AR A% 5 2 f& 5K 24 (100,000) =
Trade and other payables JE 5 BR 50 S EL A JE £+ 3K
Amount due to an associate FERIB & R RIFIA 25 (270,000) (270,000)
Amount due to a joint venture ENEERRIHE 25 (93,528) (93,528)
Advance from a non-controlling e IR AR R 18 AFRIE
shareholder 25 (4,394 (3,762)
Payable for property, plant and equipment ~ JEfIEIERRAR R - KR
to a non-controlling shareholder NE-FeE] 25 (10,359) (10,565)
Other non-current liabilities HitnEmBa s
Advance from a non-controlling IR R 1B AFR
shareholder 27 (11,288) (11,288)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

@)

(b)

32 RERDEEE

Capital commitments () EEREE
At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital commitments for acquisition R20I5F 128318 REEHY
and construction of property, plant and equipment as follows: ¥ BERRENEEMNELNE
AAEEZFI0T :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTR
Authorised and contracted for BEREBEFN 1,272,965 2,532,777
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERTA 6,846,008 7,671,128
8,118,973 10,203,905
Operating lease commitments (b) EEFEERE
At 31 December 2015, the Group's total future minimum lease payments R20I5F 12831 B BERI#H
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and properties, are ShIR TR X N EE FEN BB T A
payable as follows AR R IEEEN HBEZS)
T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT
Within | year —FR 16,358 17,574
After | year but within 5 years —FREAER 23,217 27,677
After 5 years Fikix 37,551 39,835
77,126 85,086
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. ZERERBERERS -
Contingent liabilities ) HHEEE

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2015 and
2014.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(d)

Legal contingencies

The Group is the defendant in certain lawsuit as well as the plaintiff in
other proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In particular,
the Group received arbitration complaint by customers for gas supply
arrangements in the amount of RMB378,675,000 in aggregate. The claims
were still in progress and no final rulings were made as at 31 December
2015. Based on the legal opinions of the Group's PRC lawyer, the directors
consider the claims are groundless or without merit and no provision is
necessary. While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuit or other
proceedings cannot be estimated at present, the directors believe that any
resulting liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on the financial

position or operating results of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to liquidity, credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Liquidity risk
As at 31 December 2015, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB481,044,000.

In 2016 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external

financing to meet its committed future capital expenditures.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 31 December
2016. Based on such forecast, the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements of the Group during that period. In preparing the cash flow
forecast, the directors have considered historical cash requirements of the
Group as well as other key factors, including the availability of the above-
mentioned loan finance which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of the opinion that
the assumptions and sensitivities which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard to future events,
these are subject to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of

these assumptions may not be realised.

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance the daily
operation, capital expenditure and repayment of borrowings. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of
the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@)  Liquidity risk (continued)

33 BHEREEREBMIENAAE

fE ()
@) RBESER(E)

2015
Total More than ~ More than
contractual | year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted but less butless  More than
amount cash flow  Ondemand Within | year than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
BRNER
FERRE IR E ML
REEE RELE BEX IFR B2FR BSFER SEHLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR AR®TR ARETR AR®Tn ARETR AR%Tx
Borrowings fEaf 9,663322 11,214,066 85066 2,065,474 1814037 7249489 -
Trade and N
other payables H i AT IR 2285508 2,285,508 - 2285508 - - -
Obligations under HEMERE
finance lease 415,096 458,378 - 196,059 195,959 40,377 25,983
12,363,926 13,957,952 85066 4,547,041 2,009,996 7,289,866 25,983

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBMIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBELERE)
2014
Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual [ year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted but less butless  More than
amount cashflow  Ondemand Within | year ~ than 2 years  than 5 years 5 years
AFAEH
IMRET IFAE 2FNE

REEE RERE BEX IFR R BsER SENE
RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARETR AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT

Borrowings B 9098462 10686612 188802 1990157 1511608 6900529 95516
Trade and R RRR
other payables H i AT IR 24281 242281 - 24028 - - -
Obligations under ~ REMRERRE
finance lease 675404 746,078 - 333,657 225,690 158013 28718
12,196,147 13854971 188802 4746095 1737298 7058542 124234
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The management has a credit policy in place and the exposures

to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 30 to 45 days from the date of billing. Moreover,
extended credit terms are granted to certain on-site customers depending
on the credit assessment carried out by the management on an individual

basis.

Significant amounts of revenue are derived from a limited number of on-site
customers. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At 31 December 2015, 26% (2014: 18%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group's five largest customers.
The Group maintains stable business relationships with these large
customers and generally has no significant credit risk with these customers.
Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and are derived from revenues
earned from operations arising in the PRC. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and generally does not

require collateral on trade receivables.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 B EREEREMIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)

(b)  Credit risk and concentration risk (continued) b) GERRREES+TERE)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount EAEERRBRAAFHBMRARD
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position. BEsBEERRAEE -
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit N5 [BR 7 FE U B 2 K H h FE L R
risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 2. EMEERRMNTEEREFHNM

2l

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the AEEVERBEMNTESAEE
Group to credit risk. AR EEREHER -

(c) Interest rate risk () FEEKR

The Group's interest rate risks arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

As at 3| December 2015, RMB2,740,302,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,610,192,000) of borrowings from banks by the Group were issued

with variable interest rate, which were as 27.2% (3| December 2014:

AEEFREREERE RBHE
e FBMEMEE R ROERD
JﬁKElﬁﬁuniﬁé/m;ﬂ%@w}ﬁ
RARBEMERER

M20I5F12A831H K &
HZHMNEERTSEAARE
2,740,302,00070(20144F : AR

36.9%) of the Group's total borrowings (including finance lease liabilities 3,610,192,0007C ) © 1 42 18 Z (&
and borrowings). Details of the interest rate profile of the borrowings are EREREaBEREZR LA

disclosed in Note 24.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB23,276,000 (2014: RMB24,592,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

©

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of

the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place through PBOC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float against an

unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside
the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends
on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the Group) or must be

arranged through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial
assets and financial liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than
Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign
currencies can affect the Group's results. The Group did not hedge its

foreign currency exposure.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBMIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) E¥ER(E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk ()  IEEERE

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the TRAJNAEERREHK
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or BENNEEIN G EEUING
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency E¥TECEESBEME
of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the RSB RBRAE - SL27]
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the BOmME @ BRAEz %8
spot rate at the end of the reporting date. MARBIIR - AR S H

KB ERRY o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

HBEEAARYIIR)
2015 2014
United States Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars
N Br B e BT BT
000 '000 000 000 000 000

T 2 = Tt T

Cash and cash equivalents RERFSEED 159,803 3l 24,989 18,681 = 109,812
Bormowings B (5,325,59) - (149398)  (4761057)  (110610)  (923239)
Trade and other payables JE Rt R ELA

fEfi 38 (16349)  (377) (10275 (118208)  (0167)  (40260)

Gross exposure arisng from B ER B EME
recognised assets and liabiliies 4B\ KR 145 (5,182,142) (13,741) (734,684)  (4760,584) (130,777) (853,683)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R i R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AAREFIT)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5% strengthening of Renminbi against the respective foreign
currencies at the respective reporting period end dates would
increase profit after tax and retained eamings by the amount shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

33

PHEAREERESMIANDAR

=16 )

d) E¥EKR(E)

()

ST
REREHAR - ARBHEZ
BERBES%E FRBRT
BRRBRNEMOEES
SIIE o ZAMRREAA
B8 LHRNE R

NE

B o

Effect on profit after tax and retained eamings B¢ 718 M (R B8 B 5/ &

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL
294,112 282,189

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2014.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBMIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(e)  Fair values () 2ANREE
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () BALEBEIAENZHBEE
kA=
Fair value hierarchy DA EEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial TR IG R BIBR B 75 3R 5 2 B
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a FIBRIAAEBEFEIPH
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as ENARBE=EER 7
defined in IFRS |3, Fair value measurement. The level into which a NI AREERREHRE R
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to TENAREBE - REAL
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation BEERKARAENR
technique as follows: BEUENBERE  DAEE
STERERSENT
—  Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | - ERI:AnEEE
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for BAZIBRE AR
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date. = BARKFHEN
ERMSREREE
FEBRFEHNR
E o
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs = B AnBER
ie. observable inputs which fail to meet Level |, and not using BEIERE ABG
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs E T RREI
for which market data are not available. AR A 1 6 AT LR B Y
BAE YAEFER
BEENAABREN
BABE(TAERIN
BAERDPEEMS
YENBAE)
—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - Ef3: A BER
unobservable inputs. BEZNAAEEI

HEABE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

0 75 R Y L

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AR

33

B3I7R)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair values (continued)

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has appointed a third party performing valuations for
warrants which are categorised into Level 3. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement are prepared by the
Group or a third party at each interim and annual reporting date, and
are reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the chief financial officer
and the audit committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the

reporting dates.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur,

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBMIENAAE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)

(e)  Fair values (continued) () AREBEEGE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account current interest rates and the

current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of warrants are determined using binomial option
pricing model and the significant unobservable input used in the
fair value measurement is volatility. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the volatility. As at 31 December 2015, the
volatilities used in the valuations is 39.13%, and it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant, an increase/decrease of 10%
points in the volatility would have decreased/increased the Group's
profit by RMB422,000/RMB 1 55,000.

()

BAREBETENEHEE
HzHEE (&)

FLERAABEAEF R
A ERNTBA E
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBMIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) AAREMEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) () HALREBEENZTHBEE
fieHEE (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued) EIERAAEEFEEE
(&)
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair FFE3EfeRTARR
value measurements are as follows: BERAFEHNT -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETR

Conversion option embedded in convertible  AJ &% &5 )88 ik R EM R AR iR

notes and warrants:

At | January RIAIB 2,268 1,972
Changes in fair value recognised in profit RAFFABRN AR BEE

or loss during the year (2,090) 296
At 31 December RI12A318 178 2,268
Total (gain)/loss for the year included FRZJNNEENRE

in profit or loss for liabilities carried ATABHERN

at the end of the year (W) BERBE (2,090) 296

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair
value

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
and other receivables, current portion of receivables/obligations
under finance lease, current portion of long-term borrowings, short-
term borrowings, and trade and other payables, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these

financial instruments.

In respect of borrowings, receivables/obligations under finance lease
and long-term receivables, the carrying amounts are not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
The fair values are estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial

instruments.

Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably

measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

34 AFEBEMERRE

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥TR ARETRT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment, net Mz - BB N R 72 368
Interest in subsidiaries i RIEENGIL o 4,338,345 4,326,269
Total non-current assets FRENEEHLE 4,338,417 4,326,637
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b e U Z0E 825 [,148
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEED 14,293 9,893
Total current assets REEEALE 15,118 [ 1,041
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings &3k 185,354 141,996
Other payables Hip FEA5IE 2,474,971 2,566,218
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 2,660,325 2708214
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (2,645,207)  (2,697,173)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERABEE 1,693,210 1,629,464
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings & 632,637 =
Total non-current liabilities FREEEEE 632,637 -
Net assets EERE 1,060,573 1,629,464

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBFIR)

34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

34 REEEMBRRR (H)

2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARETT

Equity s 30(a)

Share capital LEN 12 12
Reserves =] 1,060,561 1,629,452
Total equity BB 1,060,573 1,629,464

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2016.

Zhongguo Sun

Director

EZ

35 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend.

Further details are disclosed in Note 30(b).
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Trevor Raymond Strutt
Director
EF

35 HiRIEFEER
RIBEHRRE  ESRBOREKRBR
F| o FEIBEHMIEER30(b) ©
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0 75 R Y L

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued the
following amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year
ended 3| December 2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycte [ January 2016
IFRS 14, Regulatory ceferral accounts I January 2016
Amendments to IFRS |1, Accounting for acquisitions I January 2016
of interests in joint operations
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clanifcation I January 2016
of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, Agnculture: Bearer plants I January 2016
Amendments to IAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements I January 2016
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, /nvestment | January 2016
enttties: Applying the consolidation exception
194 Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinueq)

B 5 R AR Y 5L )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFIR)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 36 CEMEREBE2015FI12A318LE

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ¢Fr=‘ﬁﬂi$%zﬂ’9ﬂ*ﬂ : %ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%ﬂ%‘%
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (continued) BURTRNTE (&
Effective for DANE P
accounting periods ZERRN
beginning on or after R RS
Amendments 1o 1AS |, Disclosure inftiative | January 2016 B @R R EE] 0I6FI1A1B
(REit#)
Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure initiative I January 2017 Bl g ER R TR BT WI7EIRIB
(%12
Amendments to IAS 12, fncome taxes - Recognttion | January 2017 l & u+$ﬁ'J%\27FE’Jf il WI7EIAIB
of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses e — K EREXL
ﬁﬁﬁf FHAERER)
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers [ January 2018 Bl BTSRRI 155, WI8FIA1H
(REEHEPHYA)
IFRS 9, Finandial instruments | January 2018 BIRR BT aRE ERI B 95 0I18FI1A1B
(2 TR)
IFRS 16, Leases | January 2019 BRI S R RS 1 65% 0191 A8
(HE)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of AEE EANE A HERTFIENRNE
these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period of initial REAREMBRENTE - ZHAIA
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a IF - RABEET A ENHARTA
significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position. At g U AEEN L ERR ML
LHEATE -

=
5
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Financial Summary

LB S E

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December

BZ12A31BLEE

HRASHEENERUERE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT  AR¥TR
Revenue WA 4240275 4955933 6,865,508 7,716,161 7918861
Gross profit E7 1,450,89 1,573,121 2,130,846 2,478,908 2,550,268
Profit from operations e 1,091,320 1,101,717 1,526,884 1,796,056 1,875,169
Profit before taxation BB A0 A 981,447 907,129 1203613 1,292,841 950,490
Profit and total comprehensive REFER
income for the year e Gt 835,647 771,285 909,612 912,162 532,705
Attributable to: A -
Equity Shareholders of the Company AR AIEZIFH A 830819 770,117 907,896 903,905 535,941
Non-controlling interests R R 4828 1,168 1,716 8,257 (3,236)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Financial Summary ccontinued

MBRE @

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EHRHEHMERARBIBRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

RI12831H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBFT ARETTT ARETTT AR®TT
Total non-current assets FERB A ELRT 7637415 12,059,846 14281074 15,565,366 15,791,460
Total current assets MENEEBE 2,187,365 2,733,255 2,270,694 3,685,708 3,782,983
Total assets BERARE 9,824,780 14,793,101 16,551,768 19,251,074 19,574,443
Total current liabilities mEE ERRE (2,562,.974) (5,819,348) (3,743337) (4,653,982) (4,264,027
Total assets less current liabilities BELERTBAR 7,261,806 8973753 12,808431 14,597,092 15,310,416
Total non-current liabilities FEnRBEERRE (2,258,455) (3,426,602) (6578,663) (7.853,569) (8,431,824)
Net assets EEFE 5,003,351 5547,15] 6,229,768 6,743,523 6,878,592
Total equity gt 5,003,35 5,547,151 6,229,768 6,743,523 6,878,592
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Corporate Information
NEIEF

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
KPMG

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

['Ith Floor, Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place, Central

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR

Jun He Law Offices

32th Floor, Shanghai Kerry Center
[515 Nanjingxi Road

Shanghai, China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, I7th Floor

Hopewell Centre 183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LISTING DATE
8 October 2009

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun
Ms. Wong Sze Wing

ALTERNATE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt
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Annual Report 2015

SMEERL B
S35 R Sy
BB R
EITE 105
AFRESE

BEBEM
B mEER =B
BB HR
FREE% 85
RHEHLIE|E

Safeike 4:i
BERMEBAT
hE L
R 151558
LERERLNE

BEEESELE

BREPRESFBLARAA

B Bff
SRAER 1835
BRI 171
1712-17163% 48

EmAHY
20094 10A8H

REAR
Zhongguo Sun 4
RiERT

BEEREAR

Trevor Raymond Strutt /5 4



Corporate Information ccontinuea
NE]E R )

STOCK CODE
02168

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.yingdegases.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
ir@yingdegas.com

HEADQUARTERS/PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3212-13
32/F, Tower Two
Times Square, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYI-1111

Cayman Islands
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Definitions

“Board”

“Business Day"

“CAGR"

“China” or “PRC"

“Director(s)"

“Hengyang Valin"

“Hengyang Yingde"

“HK$" “HKD" or
“HK dollars”

“Hong Kong" or “HK"

“Hong Kong
Companies

Ordinance”

the board of directors of our Company [E=g)

a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong [&%H]

Kong

Compond annual growth rate [CAGR]

the People's Republic of China, but for the purpose of this [ E

annual report and for geographical reference only and except

where the context requires, references in this annual report

to “China" and the “PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau

Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

directors of the Company (%]

Hengyang Hualing Lianzhaguan Company Limited* (f5%£% [E5EE ]
&8, EHM AT, a subsidiary of Hunan Valin Steel Company

Limited* (#IFaZEZ MBI BR A A]), a company whose

shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Hengyang Yingde Gases Company Limited* (/%21 R 58 [EsRaE]

B A7) incorporated in the PRC on 23 December 2008

pursuant to a joint venture agreement between Yingde BV,

Hunan Yingde and Hengyang Valin, which is a joint venture

company owned as to 70% by us and 30% by Hengyang Valin

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong %7l

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC (&%

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong [BBRA

Kong) (as amended from time to time) {1 |

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Definitions (continued)

EEm

“Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”

“Hunan Yingde"

“IFRS"
“independent
third party”

“Listing Rules”

“Nm?hr"

“Renminbi” or “RMB"

"SAl Report”

“SFO”

“Share(s)"

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hunan Yingde Gases Company Limited* (#if8 2= REFR A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 29 October 2001 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

International Financial Reporting Standards

a person or entity which is not a connected person of our
Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to
time)

normal cubic meter/hour

the lawful currency of the PRC

the industry report dated 18 March 2016 entitled China
Industrial Gas Market Analysis published by Strategic Analysis Inc.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

of Hong Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.000001 each in the

share capital of our Company
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Definitions (continued)

EEm

“Share Option the share option scheme conditionally approved by our shareholders

Scheme” on |12 September 2009 and approved and adopted by the Board

on |2 September 2009

"“United States” the United States of America, its territories, its possessions
or “US" and all areas subject to its jurisdiction

“US$”, “USD" or United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
“US dollars”

“Yingde BVI" Yingde Gases Investment Limited* (BEREBIKREBRA

]), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 18
April 2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and

investment holding company in our Group

In this annual report:

- “Company”, “our Company”, “our”, “we” and "us" refer to Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited Z{EREEEE AR A, an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 25 September 2007 and, except
where the context otherwise requires, include all of its subsidiaries or where
the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business which its

predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries were engaged in and

which were subsequently assumed by it;

—  "Group” means our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time; and

—  the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling

shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings

given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.

k denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or entity, or vice versa, and is

provided for identification purposes only

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2015
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